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CHAlI RPERSON FERRERAS: CGood afternoon,
and wel cone to today's Finance Committee hearing. MW
nanme is Julissa Ferreras, and | chair this commttee.
Today's Finance hearing is joint with the Aging
Conmittee chaired by nmy col |l eague and Co- Chair
Counci | Menber Margaret Chin, and Council nenbers
wll be joining us shortly. W're trying to stick to
the 1:00 o' clock tine. So as they cone in, we wll
be acknow edgi ng them Today, the Comrittee on
Fi nance and Aging will need to consider Intro 243,
whi ch woul d increase the income |evel of SCRIE
applicants from29,000 to 50,000. A resolution
calling upon New York State Legislature to pass
| egislation that would Iink inconme threshold
increases fromthe SCRIE Programto changes in the
Consuner Price Index. And the committees will also
hol d and oversight hearing entitled Strategies for
| mprovi ng the Adm nistration of SCRIE.

For the Intro and Resol ution that cal
for income increases, the commttee |ooks forward to
hearing fromthe Departnent of Finance about the
potential inpact of the inconme increase on the nunber

of people who would now be eligible for SCRIE, and
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whet her DOF has the current capacity to process the
addi tional applications that would result.

For the oversight portion of the hearing,
the coommittee | ooks forward to hearing fromthe
Departnent of Finance to |earn about the successes
and failures it has encountered when inplenenting the
SCRI E program since the programwas transferred to
DOF in 2009. W also look forward to hearing from
t he Departnent of Aging regarding their involvenent,
if any, in the SCRIE program including their
Qutreach efforts. For the benefit of the public and
ny colleagues, | will provide a brief overview of the
SCRI E Program

In 2009, Mayor Bl oonberg subm tted
| egislation to the Council to transfer the
Admi nistration of the SCRIE Program from DFTA to DOF.
According to the Bill's nmeno in support, the transfer
of SCRIE operations to DOF was designed to achieve a
better custoner service experience for seniors, as
wel | as reduce admi nistrative burdens. Two years
following the transfer this assunption was proven not
to be true. On Septenber 27, 2011, the Fi nance
Committee jointly with the Aging Commttee held and

oversi ght hearing to exami ne DOF s inplenentation of
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the SCRIE Program As a result of the hearing, the
commttees |learned that the DOF's process of
adm ni stering the program was i nadequate and
inefficient. Specifically, the commttees |earned
t hat seniors have experienced delays in the time it
takes to process the initial SCRIE application and
the new application. Sone del ays have been as | ong
as seven nonths. DOF did not have dedicated staff to
deal solely with SCRIE issues. DOF does not have a
publ i c phone nunber that SCRIE tenants or owners with
SCRIE tenants can use to contact soneone directly at
DOF about the SCRIE program A conputer glitch
caused errors in landlord' s property tax bills,
causing all 15,000 buil dings receiving SCRIE benefits
to have erroneous tax bills, with the inproper anount
of SCRIE credits applied, and no credits applied at
all.

Unl i ke DFTA, DOF did not have a
conpr ehensi ve manual that proved details, that
provi ded details about the SCRIE Program i ncl uding
frequently asked questions, a glossary of terns, and
application procedures. And we also | earned that
fromJuly 2009 to Novenmber 30, 2010, DOF issued SCRIE

benefits on behal f of over 3,800 tenants who were
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deceased, totally $11.8 mllion. Since that hearing,
many of these problens were renediated. The
Departnment of Famlies has since created a SCRIE Unit
dedi cated to processing SCRIE applications; nade
| andl ord's SCRIE Report avail able online; created a
conpr ehensi ve SCRIE brochure. And they now
crosscheck SCRI E open accounts with Social Security
death naster file to ensure the benefits are paid to
i ndi viduals who are alive.

These are great inprovenents, and I
appl aud DOF for naking these strides. However, as
council menber with a | arge senior popul ation,
still hear many conplaints as do many of ny fell ow
counci | menbers. Many conpl aints include DOF s |ack
of a dedicated phone line, the lack of SCRIE wal k-in
offices in every borough. Currently, there is only
one SCRIE office and it's located in Manhattan. Lack
of Qutreach about SCRIE -- about the SCRIE Program
even though an MOU were entered into by the DOF and
DFTA requires DFTA to provide Qutreach in senior
centers, community centers indefinitely. The
comm ttee | ooks forward to hearing DOF s progress on
the inplenentation of the SCRIE Program and

DFTA/ SCRI E Qutreach efforts.
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Before | turn the mc over to nmy Co-
Chair, Margaret Chin, | just want to take a quick
nonent to address the City's senior popul ation,
especially those who are here today. | know that the
City's senior population is the fastest grow ng
popul ation in New York City, which is likely due to
the many Baby Booners reaching retirenent. | also
know t hat many seniors currently live in housing that
does not adequately neet their needs.

Those that are fortunate enough to live
i n adequate apartments, may not be able to continue
to afford them because of rising rents. It is ny
hope and the hope of ny Co-Chair and the Council as a
whol e that we as city do better. Qur first step in
trying to do better is passing legislation to ensure
that seniors are protected fromrent increases
t hrough SCRI E

We al so want to ensure that the agency
adm ni stering the SCRI E program does so in an
ef fective, productive, and sensitive way that is
responsive to our seniors' needs. The conmttees
have a | ot of questions today, and we al so have a | ot
of people who want to testify. | want to thank the

staff, who worked on this hearing today, and |I want
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to thank you Counsel Tani sha Edwards; Kelly Tayl or,
the Aging Counsel; Enmera Etiv [sp?], Dohini Sanpura,
and Sarah Gassel man [sp?] They worked hard in
preparing for this hearing. So |I thank you very nuch
for all your hard work. Now, | will turn the
m crophone over to my Co-Chair Council Menber
Mar gar et Chin.

CO CHAI RPERSON CHIN: Thank you, Chair
Ferreras. Good afternoon. |'m Margaret Chin, Chair
of the Aging Commttee. | want to thank Counci
Menber Ferreras and the Finance Commttee for joining
us today. This is a hearing that both of us have
been eager to hold since the start of the session.
And now that we're poised to expand SCRIE for the
first time in five years, this is the perfect
opportunity to take stock of the program and how we
can ensure that SCRIE is accessible to all eligible
seniors, and it's benefitting the greatest nunber of
tenants possi bl e.

SCRI E has been a lifeline for tenants and
t housands of seniors in New York Cty. As you al
know, SCRIE offers New York City's seniors, who are
| ow i ncone, the opportunity to have their rent frozen

at its current level, and to be exenpt fromfuture
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rent increases. For years, the Council along with
sonme of our senior advocates has argued that the
incone thresholds are sinply too low. Earlier this
nonth, the State finally took action and approved an
increase in the incone limt from $29, 000 to $50, 000.

Today, we will be hearing on Intro 243, a
bill that | sponsored along with Chair Ferreras, and
Counci| Menber WIllianms that will allow that increase
Il evel to take effect for New York City seniors
starting July 1st. Qur tineline here is fairly
short. So | hop that the Departnent of Finance is
going to tell us that after we pass this bill, they
wi Il be prepared and fully ready to start accepting
new SCRI E applications two nonths fromtoday. Wile
we are thrilled that the State raised the incone
l[imt for SCRIE eligibility, we need to be clear that
this is just a one-tine increase.

The cost of living in New York City wll
continue to go up, and in just a few years | imagine
we'll be back in the sane place, fighting for the
State to raise the |level again. So that needy
seniors aren't unfairly pushed out of the program
because they received cost of living adjustnents to

their Social Security checks. W need a nmechani sm
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put into the SCRIE programthat will automatically
adj ust the incone threshold.

So Council Menber Koslow tz, Ferreras,
and | have introduced Res 0185, which call on the
State to pass legislation by Senator Bill Perkins and
Assenbly Menber Joan MIne that would provide for an
annual adjustnment with the SCRIE i ncone threshold to
reflect any increase in the Consuner Price Index. |If
this bill is passed, seniors would rest easy know ng
that adjustnent to their fixed income won't cause
themto lose SCRIE eligibility. And | want to thank
all the staff that hel ped prepare for this hearing
today, and thank you all for com ng.

CHAlI RPERSON FERRERAS: Thank you, Co-
Chair Chin. | just want to say that we've been
j oi ned by Council Menber Cornegy, Council Menber
Val | one, Council Menber Rose, and Council Menber
Rosenthal . Thank you to the Adm nistration for being
here today, and you may begin your testinony.

SARA MEYERS. Hi, I'm Sarah Myers, and
" mrepresenting the Departnent of Finance.

CARYN RESNI CK:  And |I'm Caryn Resni ck
representing the New York City Departnent for the

Agi ng.
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SARA MEYERS: Good afternoon, Chairwoman
Ferreras, Chairwonman Chin and nenbers of the
Comm ttees on Finance and Aging. |'m Sarah Meyers,
Assi stant Comm ssi oner of Tax and Parking Program
Qperations. Thank you for the opportunity to testify
bef ore you today regarding Introduction 243 and
adm ni stration of the Senior Citizen Rent |ncrease
Exenption Program which will increase the SCRIE
incorme eligibility threshold from $29, 000 to $50, 000,
as of July 1, 2014. SCRIE is hugely inportant to
this administration. W support this bill. However,
the enabling state | egislation sunsets in tw years.

Therefore, we suggest anendi ng the
| anguage so that the Local Law al so sunsets at the
sanme tine. W are fully commtted to continue SCRIE
at the higher incone threshold, but we feel it is
crucial that the Local Law mmcs what is in the
State law. W understand that there are concerns
about the SCRIE Program And we are neking every
effort to continually inprove our adm nistration of
the val uabl e benefit. W |ook forward to your
feedback today. Qur new Fi nance Conm ssioner wll be
starting in a few weeks, and he has al ready expressed

his commtnent to SCRIE and his desire to work
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together to reach people who may qualify for the
benefit, but are not already taking advantage of this
cruci al benefit.

Introduction 243 will increase the nunber
of SCRIE applicants and participants due to the
increase in the maxi num qualifying incone. W are
gearing up to handle these new enrollees, and we w ||
be prepared for this change. After we receive an
application, our first step is to verify that
applicants neet the requirements for the program In
order to qualify for SCRIE in addition to neeting the
maxi mum i ncone threshol d, applicants nust al so neet
the Rent Income Ratio set out in the |aw.

This ratio requires that the nonthly rent
for SCRIE participants nmust be nore than one-third of
their nmonthly income. W determne the nonthly
i ncone by | ooking at the annual inconme submtted with
the application. Inconme includes all househol d
i ncone, and takes into account the incone of everyone
residing in the hone, including Social Security,

i ncone for taxable and non-taxabl e sources and
pensions. W require incone docunentation in order

to process an application.
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In 2014, applicants nust submt incone
docunent ati on from cal endar year 2013. Wen a
househol d nenber does not file taxes, we accept other
docunentation that represents earned incones such as
Social Security statements, pension statenents, |IRA
di vidend statenents, IRS fornms, 1099 and/or a W2.

I f they do not have any of those docunments, we wl|
accept a signed letter fromthe applicant stating

that they had no incone in a certain year and why.

Once we determne the incone, we | ook at the | ega

rent on the applicant's lease to see if it's nore

than one-third of their incone.

For exanple, if the applicant's household
incone is $35,000 we will determ ne the nonthly
income to be $2,916.67. Their legal rent would have
to be nore than $972 in order to qualify for the
program The legal rent for an applicant with a
househol d i ncome of $50, 000 woul d have to be at | east
$1,389 for themto qualify for the program To put
this in context, according to the Furman Center Rent
Stabilization Report fromApril 2012, the nedian rent
of rent stabilized apartnents outside of the
Manhattan Core below 96th Street was $1, 132 in 2011,

i ncluding the Manhattan Core the nedian rent in 2011
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was $1,480. Taking into account the nonthly | ega
rent to incone ratio the Mayor's O fice of Managenent
and Budget has estimated that an additional 6,000
househol ds may be eligible for SCRIE when the
proposed i ncrease goes into effect on July 1st.

The expansi on of the SCRIE Program w | |
require us to add sone new staff to help process the
new applications and support the program
participants. W expect we will need three new staff
for every 4,000 participants that are added to the
program In addition this nunber, we anticipate that
we wll need nore staff to help with renewal s and
program support in the future. It is our priority to
make sure we have the staffing capacity to naintain
our current customer service and operationa
standards. It is also crucial to us that we have the
teamin place that will enable us to continue
bui | di ng upon these standards as we strive to inprove
t he program further.

To that end, | would like to highlight
the progress we have nade since Finance first took
over the SCRIE Program from DFTA in 2009. CQur | ast
testinony about SCRIE in front of the Council was in

March 2012. At that tine, we spoke at |ength about
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the concerns elected officials, advocates, comunity
groups, and SCRIE participants had about the program
W took these concerns seriously, and have

i npl emented a nunber of changes to SCRIE, which I
woul d |i ke to highlight.

For exanple, two years ago, it took up to
30 days to process a SCRIE renewal. Now, renewal
applications are processed in nine days or |less on
average. And initial applications are processed in
four days on average. W have achieved these
ef ficiencies by reorganization our SCRIE/DRIE Unit,
and by automatic parts of the process. W scan and
categorize all SCRIE and DRIE files so that we can
qgui ckl y access them when there's an inquiry or we are
working to process them W established a SCRIE/DRIE
Customer Service group as well as a SCRIE/ DRI E Wl k-
In Center that is open from8:30 to 4:30 p.m five
days a week.

SClI RE Program participants, including
tenants and | andl ords can cone to see us any tine
they would like to ask us a question in person. W
hel p potential applicants who understand what is
needed to apply to the program and whet her they

quality. W accept applications and associ at ed
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docunments and distribute applications. The Center's
staff can quickly | ook up the status of an
application. W provide information about services
for seniors, and |locations of senior centers
t hroughout the city. The three full-tinme enpl oyees
working the Center are part of the SCRIE/ DRI E
Cust omer Service group. Their supervisor, who
oversees the whole SCRIE/ DRI E Custoner Service group,
has vast experience with custoner service. One of
the center nenbers is fluent in Spanish. Al of the
staff have access to phone interpretation service so
that they can communi cate wi th non-English speaking
customers. Qur interpretation provider gives us
access to nore than a hundred different |anguages.
In addition to the Center, our Custoner
Service group responds to many SCRIE/DRIE enmails and
311 service requests. W respond to SCRIE inquiries
sent to us by 311, or that we receive via email wth
48 hours. In the case of a tenant or applicant
i nquiring via phone through 311, we contact them back
by a phone call. Through nuch of this fiscal year
this team has so far responded to nore than 10, 000

inquiries that we received either from 311 or by
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email. Two of the staff menbers charged with these
responses use to process SCRIE applications.

Al'l of our SCRIE dedicated custoner
service staff are know edgeabl e and care deeply about
hel pi ng people get the information they need. W
have i nproved our custoner service for SCRIE and our
area of Qutreach as well. W now have a full-tine
Qut reach Coordinator for Seniors, who works within
our Qutreach group. She has personal relationships
wi th groups that work with the agi ng popul ation
i ncl udi ng seni or centers, advocacy groups and
comruni ty groups. She speaks frequently with DFTA to
share informati on and coordi nate on Qutreach efforts.

Earlier this week she attended DFTA' s
Annual Housing Benefits and Entitlenments Comm tt ee.
The Coordi nator focuses on Qutreach events that
specifically target seniors. Al of our Qutreach
staff can speak expertly about SCRIE, and our other
housi ng benefits -- benefit for seniors, the Senior
Ctizen Honeowner Exenption. |In calendar year 2013,
our Qutreach team had 130 events. O these, 37 were
specifically focused on seniors, and 20 were specific

to the SCRI E Program
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We often received questions about senior
prograns at all of our Qutreach events, and we are
wel | equi pped to handl e these. Apart from Fi nance's
Qutreach events, DFTA participated in approxi mate 180
conmunity events, which were attended by nore than
14,800 ol der adults where they al so spoke about
SCRIE. DFTA and Finance continue to work
coll aboratively to distribute SCRIE information. In
cal endar year 2013, we sent SCRIE flyers via emai
and fax to 335 aging service providers, which reached
17,000 home delivered neal recipients, senior
centers, case managenent agenci es, caregiver
prograns, homecare providers, and | egal service
provi ders.

In addition to Qutreach and custoner
service, |last year we published a Conprehensive Quide
to SCRIE and DRIE. This bookl et has everything
tenants, |andlords, and new applicants need to know
about SCRIE. It's also available in English,

Spani sh, Russi an, Chinese, and Korean. W distribute
t hese booklets at all of our Qutreach events. W
work closely with elected officials' offices to
ensure that you have the materials you need to help

your constituents.
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One of the tools that we provide is a
monthly |ist of SCRIE tenants at risk of losing their
benefits because they have failed to renew. Wbrking
together we are able to reach nore people and provide
t he support that this vul nerable popul ati on needs,
and we appreciate your feedback

| would like to end ny testinony by
enphasi zi ng that the new adm ni stration, including
t he new Fi nance and Departnments of the Aging
Conmi ssioners is totally conmitted to providing these
val uabl e benefits to all qualified New Yorkers.

SCRIE is trenmendously inportant to us, and we take
very seriously the need to reach as many peopl e as
possi ble. W are devel opi ng new net hods of Qutreach
to publicize SCRIE, and get additional people signed
up for the program Qur new Conmm ssioner is starting
soon, and he is looking forward to | eading this
initiative. One project we are launching soon is to
send letters regarding the inconme increase to al
appl i cants who were denied for having the incone
above the threshold over the | ast several years. W
wi Il update you on all of our plans as they devel op
over the next few nonths. At this time, | would be

happy to answer any questions you may have.
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[ Pause]

CHAI RPERSON FERRERAS: Thank you very
much for your testinony. So, it's educating and
actually answered a | ot of our questions. So we
won't be circling back on some things so you don't
have to repeat, but it's nice to keep it on the
record. So | appreciate you identifying the 60,000 -
- the 6,000 new applicants that this legislation wll
trigger. | want to talk about the data set and how -
- first, how you identified the 6,000. But also I
know that in the May 20 talk -- comunication with
the Council DOF stated that it's working on
devel oping a reliable data set and anal ytical nethods
for targeting seniors. And I'd |ike to know what's
t he progress, and how you got to today's numnber?

SARA MEYERS:. Sure. Well, 1'Il answer
the questions kind of separately, but they are
connected. The 6,000 nunber is an estimate that OVB
hel ped us cone up with by using the Housing Vacancy
Survey, which has a sanple size of 19,000 units.
There are a mllion rent regulated units. So this
sanple size is small, but is our best estimte of the
nunber that are eligible. W think the -- we think

it's reliable is the fact that the nunmber is not
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going to be hugely significant because of the one-
third income ratio that's required.

So sone people may think that because
we' re addi ng $20, 000 onto the incone limt, you would
go up in that sane percentage in participants. But
we don't believe that to be the case, because you
have to | eave the one-third incone ratio. W have
spent a lot of tine over the past couple of years
|l ooking at trying to get a data set where we could to
targeted Qutreach for new participants when it was
$29,000. It has proven to be very difficult because
there is no naster database that shows us everyone
who is in arent regulated apartnment who is 62 or
ol der, who nakes | ess than $29,000 and who pays nore
than one-third of their inconme in rent.

That's why we have worked a | ot of
Qutreach events, and worked -- tried to work with
el ected officials to get the word out. Because their
popul ation to begin one mllion rent regulated units
we don't have a data set that shows us who these
peopl e are, who nmay be eligible. So that nunber
still -- or the actual data still eludes us in order
to directly target. And we're always open to hearing

about ideas to get at this popul ation.
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CHAI RPERSON FERRERAS: So, when we're
tal ki ng about the data set, and hoping to get --
identify a nore accurate nunber, | know that there
has been tal ks about reaching out to HRA and the
Board of Elections. Is there anything, any update in
wor ki ng with other agencies that m ght have this
dat a?

SARA MEYERS: Well, we do -- | know we
did do a mailing to food stanp recipients in previous
years. So that was using HRA data. The nunbers did
not go up significantly because you have to be in a
rent regulated building. You can't be -- you can't
receive Section 8 to get SCRIE. And Board of
El ection data we were not able to use in any fashion
t hat was hel pful .

CHAI RPERSON FERRERAS: kay. Well, since
you nentioned food stanps, | wanted tal k about
probably the reverse of food stanps, and really
trying to communi cate who are currently using food
stanps. But in reviewing the MU, it was al so
hi ghli ghted that there was to be sonme sort of
coordi nation with hel ping increase the food stanps

eligibility to the seniors who are applying to SCRIE
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What is your Qutreach and your plan on that, and
that's in you MOU Point 10.

SARA MEYERS: Actually, our Assistant
Conmi ssi oner on Qutreach is off today, which we did
make Council know in advance. So that specific
guestion | cannot answer, but I'm happy to get back
to you on that.

CHAI RPERSON FERRERAS: Yes, 1'd like you
to get back to the Commttee.

[ background di scussi on]

CHAI RPERSON FERRERAS: All right, did
DFTA have -- ?

CARYN RESNI CK: W have been engaged in
several initiatives in partnership. W had a federa
grant. | have been working with the Council of
Seni or Centers and Services and the AARP to do a big
SNAP Qutreach canpaign, and help eligible seniors
apply for SNAP Servi ces who are not now receiVing
them wth success. And we're continuing on to make
that a key part of the work that we do.

CHAI RPERSON FERRERAS: So when you say

it's success, do you have nunbers?
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CARYN RESNI CK: | did not cone prepared
today with those nunbers, but we can certainly get
back to you.

CHAlI RPERSON FERRERAS: [i nterposing] But
you can verify them Yeah, if you can get themto
the coormittee. |In identifying these new potentia
6,000 seniors, | just want to -- |I'msorry,
acknow edge that we've been joined by Council Menber
Koslowitz, who is actually a sponsor on one of our
| egislations today with Council Menber Chin, Chair
Chin. Are there new needs that we're going to be
seeing in the next Executive Budget to address? It
seens like it's like 2-1/2 people that you have to
hire because 6,000 people. So what are the new needs
we shoul d be expecting in the Executive Budget.

SARA MEYERS: W are putting forth, at
| east for the upcom ng year, three staff nenbers, and
we are going to wait to ask for additional staff
menbers for the renewal unit as we see what cones
t hrough. But, yes, and we've al ready begun worki ng on
t hat .

CHAlI RPERSON FERRERAS: (kay, | have two
nore questions and then | want to open it up

obviously to ny coll eagues who have questions and ny
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Co-Chair. But in your testinony, you spoke about the
-- oObviously there's a thing from anot her borough,

not one of the outer boroughs. | think we're trying
to change the nunbers. Having a site in Manhattan is
hi ghly i nconveni ent, and |I know everyone -- | think
for sonme people the perspective is that if you do it
in Manhattan everybody could get to it. That's not
true, and especially not true for a population |ike
seniors. And we don't even have to -- Access-A-Ride
is a whole other hearing. Right, that's a whole

ot her conversation. W're not going to go there.
However, when you tal ked about that there is a
staffer, or | guess there's a staffing -- the staff
person is -- speaks Spanish, which is an issue
because we have a |l arge inmm grant senior popul ation
that's growing. So we need nmulti-Ilingual access,

whi ch you've already identified. And then you' ve
identified that there's a phone -- the translator
line available. So why would we have a senior who
doesn't speak English cone into the Manhattan site to
get on the phone for translation? Wy would we do --
why? It just seens incredibly inconvenient from ny
perspective. Wiy can't that senior call in a

hotline, which we've been asking for, that they would
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be able to do that fromtheir hone, which is
sonmething that's going -- It's howthey're going to
get the services provided at this site anyway?

SARA MEYERS: Well, we do have a -- in ny
testinony what | nentioned is one of the things we
changed two years ago is any senior that creates a
service request with 311, we have people call them
back directly as opposed to -- Oten what happens
with 311 is sonmeone creates a service request. It's
forwarded to the agency. The agency puts their
response to the inquiry in 311's database, and then
that person calls back 311 to get the information
But what we do is we call the person who's inquiring,
the tenant or the applicant back directly, and if
t hey do not speak English, we use a third-party phone
to use the translation service.

CHAI RPERSON FERRERAS: Right, but there's
Qutreach that says you can cone to the office from
this tine to this time. So if a senior gets this
information, they'll go to the office, and then have
to interact with the phone anyway for translation

servi ces.
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SARA MEYERS: As of now, we only have
one. | understand your point about having nulti-
I i ngual people at the centers.

CHAI RPERSON FERRERAS: O just have a
hotline where the person doesn't have to cone all the
way to Manhattan to receive the services that could
be resolved fromthe hotline. | understand your
perspective fromthe 311, but you're saying that on
average you get about 10,000 calls on 311. | would
think that m ght trigger the inportance of having a
dedi cated | i ne.

SARA MEYERS: That includes emails.

CHAI RPERSON FERRERAS: That i ncl udes
emai |l s also to the Qutreach?

SARA MEYERS:. Yeah. So, | can give you
stats on actual calls. W get about 50 SCRIE 311
inquiries a day.

CHAI RPERSON FERRERAS: Fifty a day?

SARA MEYERS: Fifty.

CHAI RPERSON FERRERAS: | think that, you
know, I'm a proponent of creating a dedicated |ine
within DOF for this issue, and think that's sonething
that 1"mgoing to always ask. And hopefully it wll

happen especially when you're asking for new | eads.
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| have two other questions, but I'mgoing to let ny
Co-Chair ask and then I'Il wap it up at the end.
Thank you so nuch

CO CHAI RPERSON CHI N: Thank you, Madam
Chair. On the report about the -- even with the
center that you have for Manhattan, you only have
three full-tinme staff there?

SARA MEYERS: Yes.

CO CHAI RPERSON CHIN:  And one of them
speaks Spani sh --

SARA MEYERS: Yes.

CO CHAI RPERSON CHIN:  -- right? So what
-- the supervisor is that additional staff?

SARA MEYERS: Yes.

CO CHAI RPERSON CHIN:  So there's four
people on the site, or the supervisor is not there
all the tinme?

SARA MEYERS: She's there when she needs
to be internms of if we need extra people there. But
currently the three people that are staffed there
nmeet the need of the people comng in.

CO CHAI RPERSON CHIN:  Now, has DOF
considered partnering with other city agencies, or

i ke our borough president to have an Qutreach office
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a borough hall or any other boroughs to provide this
ki nd of assistance or information? | mean that m ght
hel p save sone costs, but then you would have sone
personnel there. O partnering with the other

el ected official or other city agencies to really
provi de nore access to our seniors in every single
bor ough.

SARA MEYERS: | nean it's sonething that
we certainly can explore. W spent the better part
of the past two years really making sure that our
Manhattan office was running and it was running
successful. Is it possible that it's sonething that
we col d expand? W certainly could look into it.

CO CHAI RPERSON CHI N:  Yeah, | think
that's sonething that | really think that DOF shoul d
really explore to partner with other agencies in the
city the other governnent offices. That people go
to, or borough -- you know, our borough president's
office in a Borough Hall because the seniors really a
ot of tinmes they like to go into an office to talk
to sonebody to see sonebody. And | just can't stil
i magi ne -- see how the | anguage line functions. |It's
still not as good as havi ng sonebody who coul d speak

the language. And | think that the city really needs
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to continue to build that kind of capacity, hire
staff who are bilingual that speak other |anguages to
really help with this. The other question | have is
I"'mglad that in your testinony you tal ked about
reaching out to people that applied that were over
incone, and | think it's really good that you make
every effort to contact them But there were so nmany
people, the mnute they heard that we were
introducing the resolution to raise inconme, we've
gotten calls fromconstituents that we've got to
reject it based on | was three dollars over. | was
five dollars over. It's just so sad to hear stories
like that. So | think that is really a good idea to
really reach out directly to the people who apply and
got rejected. So | really applaud you for that
effort. "Il defer to ny colleagues, and | can cone
back | ater.

CHAlI RPERSON FERRERAS: Thank you, and
we' ve been joined by Council Menbers Treyger, Levine,
Van Braner, Johnson, Deutsch, and we will begin the
questioning by Council Menber Vallone foll owed by
Counci | Menber Cornegy.

COUNCI L MEMBER VALLONE: Thank you, Madam

Chair, and to our Co-Chair. Thank you for working
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jointly, and I know we're all very happy when we see
i ncreases especially for our seniors. Just to sinply
say it gets ne very nervous that we're into 2016.

So, 1'd like to address what nmaybe sone |ong-term

pl ans on the Departnent of Finance or for the budget.
After these two years, | would hate to see anything
buil ding up to $29,000. Do you have any thoughts of

| ong-term financing for this?

SARA MEYERS: It's not anything | can
comment on right now | know that we're conmitted to
maki ng sure that the program continues at threshold,
but we do think that the local |aw should be the sane
as the state | aw.

COUNCI L MEMBER VALLONE: Well, has there
been any conversations beyond the anendnent ?

SARA MEYERS:. | nean, we can get back to
you. We would have to discuss it. As of now, the
State has offered the noney, included for the first
two years. There is noney fromthe State for the
financing of SCRIE with the proposed inconme limt.

COUNCI L MEMBER VALLONE: Well, 1 think ny
second question would be in working together with
Conmi ssions for Aging, for Senior Centers, what can

we do jointly as we go to the senior centers that's
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simlar to increase enrollnent. | know we've
addressed that not as nuch of that, but maybe expand
that program a different Qutreach we can do

t oget her ?

CARYN RESNI CK: As Sarah nentioned in her
testi nony, we do work very col |l aboratively and DFTA
has its own Qutreach team They go out to comunity
health fairs, elected official fairs, everywhere and
anywhere that we're invited. And | believe we did
about 180 conmmunity events |last years. SCRIE is
al ways included front and center in the Qutreach that
we do. And in our 250 senior centers the majority of
them are capabl e of doing case assistance, and
avail able to help seniors fill out and apply for
SCRIE as well as our case managenent agencies to help
those that are frail and homebound. And that woul d
be part of their in-honme assessnent. And | can say
that for our new Conm ssioner Donna Corrado, one of
her key pieces of the vision is access to benefits
across the board, and we just nentioned SNAP. So
there's a feeling that certainly with the raise in
incone to $50, 000 we need to capture additional
seniors. And there are nmany benefits and

entitlenents that are due to us so it will be really
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a key part of our vision noving forward to nmake sure
t hat everybody has access to the benefits for which
they're entitled.

COUNCI L MEMBER VALLONE: Well, thank you
and | | ook forward to working with you and Donna has
been great, as with all our new commi ssioners on
spreadi ng the word. So thank you very nuch

CHAI RPERSON FERRERAS: Thank you Counci
Menber Vallone, and if we could just also reiterate
that question for our own to be directed during the
Executive Budget hearing, | think that woul d be
appropriate to get that in there. And now we w ||
have Council Menber Cornegy followed by Counci
Menber Rose.

[ Pause]

CHAI RPERSON FERRERAS: Counci | Menber
Rose foll owed by Council Menber Rosent hal

COUNCI L MEMBER ROSE: Thank you, Chairs.
| have to sort of echo Council Menber Vallone's
remarks. | was really excited. It felt as if
Christmas had cone. W were given this wonderful
gift of the increase only to find out a year and a
half |ater or so we have to try to put the gift back

in the box and returnit. And I think in your
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conversations about going forward, you need to think
about that. How are you going to re-gift this
present because if people are getting these benefits,
how are you going to then take them away from t henf
So ny questions is that thousands of seniors get on
SCRI E al ready paying 40 to 50% of their inconme in
rent, which puts themon a financial cliff. Thirty
percent is the |l evel set by the federal governnent
for affordability. Can the Gty inplenment a roll back
wher eby everyone on SCRIE pays no nore than 30% of
their income in rent? Could DOF do a cost benefit
anal ysis of this roll back idea?

SARA MEYERS: Well, there's currently a
statutory authority to do that. Could we enbark on a
cost benefit analysis? |1'msure we could work with
the OVMB to provi de data about what that woul d cost.
But there's nothing in the statute that would all ow
us to do that currently.

COUNCI L MEMBER ROSE: So, ny question was
could you, but now |I'm asking woul d you seriously
consider it?

SARA MEYERS: Yes.

COUNCI L MEMBER ROSE: Thank you. And

then when a senior is taken off SCRI E their rent
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escal ates overnight. How can the Gty put in place a
policy to stop seniors from begi nning taken of f of
SCRIE if they fail to recertify in tine? And such a
policy fromthe Adm nistration would hel p DOF keep
seniors on SCRIE.

SARA MEYERS: Sure. Well, let nme start
by just telling you what we do to try and get every
senior to renew their benefit, which they nust do
every two years. Sixty days before seniors SCRIE
benefit expires, we send themand their third-party
representative an application to renew. Every senior
is allowed to have one person on their case that
receives every piece of mail that they do. Oten
times, it could be soneone fromthe senior center or
it could be their child. Not all of our seniors have
this, but we always offer themthe opportunity. It's
on all of our applications. W think it's very
hel pful. So 60 days before the expiration of their
benefit, we send this application. |If they -- there
is a six-nonth grace period that they have to renew.
So if they do not -- we do not receive their
application within 30 days after their benefit
expiration date, we send the tenant and the

representative another letter. And then another 60
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days later, if they sill haven't renewed, we send a
letter to the tenant, their representative, and this
time we also add the landlord to hopefully get
anot her party interested in helping. And once that
| etter goes out, they still have an additional three
nmonths to respond. And that's when they give the
list to the Council. Every nonth we submt alist to
the Council of the tenants who have failed to renew
And we're currently at very consistently a 94%
renewal rate. So we do have about 6% every nonth
that fail to neet the six-nonth grace period. Sone
of themit's natural attrition. They would have
failed to renew their benefits for other reasons.
We've really increased, and | think inproved upon our
efforts of getting tenants to renew because it's so
important. After the six-nonth grace period has
ended, we do not have any statutory authority to
renew a benefit for a senior who cones forth after
the expiration of that grace period.

COUNCI L MEMBER RCSE: Coul d anyone sort
of intervene for themat that point? As it say -- it
gets tot he fourth nonth of the grace period, could
anyone other than the person -- the other person that

gets the notification, sort of intervene on their
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behal f? | mean because maybe it's now becone an
i ssue of nmental capacity is dimnished or --

SARA MEYERS: [interposing] Sure.

COUNCI L MEMBER RCOSE: -- they mght be in
a hospital or sonething. Could soneone other than
the actual recipient intervene at that point for
t henf

SARA MEYERS: Yes. W have advocat es,
often tinme attorneys or people who are representing
adults with dimnished capacity step forward on their
behal f.

COUNCI L MEMBER ROSE: |Is the six-nonth
grace period is hard and fast, that's a hard nunber?

SARAH MEYERS: Yes.

COUNCI L MEMBER RCSE: | have a question
about, of course, Staten Island. And I was | ooking
at the popul ation served by SCRIE, and there's 342
fol ks who avail thenselves of this program So could
you tell ne what that is attributable to? 1 know we
have a | ot of private houses, but this nunber is --
it's alarm ng based on the fact that we have such a
| arge senior population. So do you know what this
nunber is attributable to? Are they Qutreach

efforts?
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SARA MEYERS: | would say on the first
thing is kind of what you kind of nentioned. | do
believe that the rent rate there's not as many rent
regulated units on Staten Island, and you have to be
living in arent regulated apartnment. W certainly
can work to -- with any of our elected official in
Staten Island. W are open to working with any
el ected official that wants us to cone and do
SCRIE/DRIE Qutreach. W are happy to do so and to
train staffers on SCRIE and DRI E.

COUNCI L MEMBER ROSE: What has been the
traditional sort of Qutreach that you've done in
Staten Island to get individuals to avail thensel ves
of SCRI E?

SARA MEYERS. Again, | don't oversee
Qutreach. | have sonme Qutreach staff, and | can see
if we have data on Staten Island. Let's see what |
have. kay, all right. So we regularly participate
in senior affairs. Well, our Qutreach, we have done
several Qutreach events in the past year in Staten
Island, and |I think we'd be open to doing as nmany as
her --

COUNCI L MEMBER ROCSE: | would really like

to speak to you --
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SARA MEYERS: [interposing] Sure.

COUNCI L MEMBER ROSE: -- offline about
that, and --

SARA MEYERS: [interposing] |'m happy
to.

COUNCI L MEMBER ROSE: -- help with the
Qut r each.

SARA MEYERS: Happy to.

COUNCI L MEMBER ROSE: Thank you

SARA MEYERS: Thank you, Chair.

CHAI RPERSON FERRERAS: And | woul d hope,
and | don't know what the plan is reaching out to
el ected officials, because | know that you had
nmentioned it. But I'mhoping that the Qutreach is
proactive where there is sonmeone that engages with
el ected officials especially now that we have a
signi ficant amount of new nenbers that have joi ned
the Council. Wiich nmeans new -- different types of
Qutreach, different connections, different
relationships that the agency is reaching out to the
el ected officials, and not waiting for the elected
official to reach out to you. So | hope that that's

part of the strategy.
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SARA MEYERS: Absolutely, and | know I
speak for Assistant Conmi ssioner Karasek who
unfortunately couldn't be here who oversees Qutreach
that she will be in touch. | know that we al so have
our coordi nator on Senior Qutreach efforts, Robin
Canades [sp?] who's here, and | know t hat she woul d
be happy to speak to any nenber and will reach out.
| know that we did a training | believe in March
Maybe it was in April with Council Menber staff on
SCRIE and DRIE, and we | ook forward to do nore of
t hat .

* CHAI RPERSON FERRERAS:. Yes, pl ease that
woul d be great, and |I just wanted to thank you for
the nonthly updates that you do send. They are very
hel pful, and fromthe cormmittee we do share this with
our other council nenbers.

SARA MEYERS: Right.

CHAI RPERSON FERRERAS: So | al so urge ny
council menbers to | ook out for those emails. So
t hank you, and Tani sha sends themout. Also, we've
been joi ned by Council Menbers MIler and Arroyo, and
now we wi Il have questions from Council Menber

Rosent hal foll owed by Council Menber Koslowtz.
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COUNCI L MEMBER ROSENTHAL: Hi. Thank you
very nmuch for com ng today, and | very much
appreciate this hearing. To the chairs, thank you.
| just want to nake two qui ck comments. First, |
want to thank the three Upper Westsiders that | see
here in the room Thank you for comng to the
hearing, and | do just want to take this opportunity
to give a shout out to Council Menber Deutsch for
traveling to the Upper West Side to ny town hall | ast
night. | very much appreciated that, and Upper
West si ders now know who you are. So, the three
questions that | have are first, in our office we
definitely use the information that you send over.
So thank you very nmuch, and thank you Tani sha for
sending it over. And the last | |ooked at it over
hal f of the people on our list the contact
information is bad. So we had sent themout a
letter. The letter cane back to our office. W
call ed, and the nunber disconnected or wong nunber.
Now, obviously we don't know what happened to these
peopl e, and |I'm concerned about that. So |['m
wondering if you have any thoughts about -- |'m
surprised to have heard your nunber of 92% success

rate in reaching out to people. | don't know if
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there's a correl ati on between that and nmy 50% not
contactable rate. Could you talk about that just a
little bit?

SARA MEYERS: Well, the list that you're
getting is people who have not renewed the benefit,
and have received three notices. So to ne it would -
- there would be a correlation to that list. That
list represents the | ess than 10% who haven't
replied. So it would rmake sense to tinme that over
hal f that list would -- You know, they're not
renewi ng for a reason. They have noved away, passed
away. |It's so -- that doesn't --

COUNCI L MEMBER ROSENTHAL: [i nterposing]
| see what you're saying. Yep, yep, yep, yep. So
you've sent themthree letters already?

SARA MEYERS: Yes.

COUNCI L MEMBER ROSENTHAL: So, the letter
that cones fromthat is the fourth letter?

SARA MEYERS: Correct.

COUNCI L MEMBER ROSENTHAL: COkay, |'mjust
trying to think about how we could find them sooner,
or find out that -- how we find out that they've

noved or -- At which point they've dropped off the




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

COW TTEE ON AG NG JO NTLY WTH THE COWM TTEE ON FI NANCE 44

rolls altogether once you send themto us, and they
haven't responded to four emails -- four letters?

SARA MEYERS: After the six-nonth grace
period there's an opportunity for another enuil

COUNCI L MEMBER ROSENTHAL: How soon do we
get the list? Do we get it?

SARA MEYERS: You get it at the three-
nonth mark of their six-nmonth grace period. So
essentially we're starting a renewal process two
nont hs before they expire. W send our renewal
applications out to about 2,000 people every nonth,
and a | ot of people renew by their expiration date.
And then the list keeps getting smaller.

COUNCI L MEMBER ROSENTHAL: Yep, yep, yep.

SARA MEYERS: So the list we send you, or
to Council the master list, | think is |less than 200
peopl e when it gets divvied up anongst the Council.

COUNCI L MEMBER ROSENTHAL:  Yeah, the
reason | asked is because the nost recent one
woul dn't that be on the three-nmonth mark because
we're |like two weeks away, and we were calling these
peopl e.

SARA MEYERS: These are nmaking their six-

nonth grace period we send it.
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COUNCI L MEMBER ROSENTHAL: Ckay, so we
shoul d just check on that a little bit. That could
be our office, but that was a little nerve racking.

And then how many people -- So is there an effort on

your office part to expand this to DRIE? | knowit's

up to the state to decide, but what are we doing
there so for the disabled?

SARA MEYERS: For the incone?

COUNCI L MEMBER ROSENTHAL:  Uh- huh.

SARA MEYERS: DRIE incone in the -- in
their governing statutes is a little different
because it's currently linked to increases for
disability, and that's -- The |legislation that was
passed by the State does not change DRI E incone.

COUNCI L MEMBER ROSENTHAL: Is that
somet hi ng you guys are pursuing to try to --

SARA MEYERS: [interposing] There is a
certain popul ati on of people who need the New York
Cap as wel | .

COUNCI L MEMBER ROSENTHAL:  Sure.

SARA MEYERS: | know there are bills in
the Senate now that are trying to increases DRI E

comng up. |I'msure there's arally around that.
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COUNCI L MEMBER ROSENTHAL: Wait, | --
part of what |'mexpressing to you is interest in
maki ng that high on your list --

SARA MEYERS: [interposing] Ckay.

COUNCI L MEMBER ROSENTHAL: -- in terns of
what |I'm hearing fromthe comunity.

SARA MEYERS: [interposing] Okay.

COUNCI L MEMBER ROSENTHAL:  Anot her thing
just real quickly is when you reach out to your |ist
of people who you' ve denied in the past, will you
send that |ist over to the Council as well so we can
make an effort?

SARA MEYERS: Sure, happy to.

COUNCI L MEMBER ROSENTHAL: Ckay, had you
pl anned to already do that or --7?

SARA MEYERS: No, but that's a good idea.
We're going to be sending thema letter probably in
t he begi nning of June, and we're going to include an
application in the letter. So we can send you the
list.

COUNCI L MEMBER ROSENTHAL: |'m eager for
that to happen.

SARA MEYERS: Ckay.
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COUNCI L MEMBER ROSENTHAL: Ckay, great.
Thank you very nuch

CHAI RPERSON FERRERAS: Thank you, Counci
Menber Rosenthal. 1n 2011, there were persona
calls, or phone calls nade for those people that did
not renew. |Is that sonething that we can revisit?
When you see the difference especially wwth the new

potential new applicants, but definitely with the

renewal concerns? | know that the forner

conmi ssioner had made it -- | think it was 1,200
calls -- 12,000 calls were nade for the nunber of
peopl e that had not renewed. |s that a practice that

t he agency can conti nue?

SARA MEYERS: It would be sonething we
can | ook at now that our non-response rate is so | ow
It's sonething we certainly can ook into. W
wouldn't -- | wouldn't say that we would commit to
calling the 2,000 that we send renewal applications
out for.

CHAI RPERSON FERRERAS: But if you called
12,000, 2,000 is a drop in the bucket.

SARA MEYERS: Yeah

CHAlI RPERSON FERRERAS: R ght?




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

COW TTEE ON AG NG JO NTLY WTH THE COWM TTEE ON FI NANCE 48

SARA MEYERS: We don't have the current
staff to call 12,000 but we certainly -- there's a
good enough amount of tine that we can -- those that
don't respond we can looking to call.

CHAI RPERSON FERRERAS: Well, 1'd like you
to pose that to the new comm ssioner and we're goi ng
to follow up as a conmttee. | think that if we
called 12, we can definitely call two. W're trying
to urge that people renew.

SARA MEYERS: Sure.

CHAI RPERSON FERRERAS: Thank you.

SARA MEYERS: A |ot of people do renew
once we send themthe application, though.

CHAI RPERSON FERRERAS: Ri ght.

SARA MEYERS: And | can give you that. |
nmean many people renew right when we send themthe
application.

CHAI RPERSON FERRERAS: (kay, and we w ||
now have Council Menber Koslowi tz foll owed by Counci
Menber Cor negy.

COUNCI L MEMBER KOSLOW TZ:  Thank you,
Madam Chair. |'m | ooking at sone nunbers here, and
my mnd is alittle boggled. | nean, of course,

peopl e who reach out to services, and I'mgoing to
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t ake Queens for instance. 11,156 people are getting
SCRIE in Queens. | think, though, that anount |ives
in nmy district not counting all the other districts
in Queens. | have an enornous anount of peopl e,
seniors living in ny district that get SCRIE. They
call ny office, and especially lately they have been
calling nmy office a | ot because of the $29, 000 and
they've got an increase in Social Security, and
maybe it was |ike $30. And they were taken of f of
SCRI E.

Is it possible that we -- | mean ny
of fice hel ps seniors everyday, every single day. |Is
it possible that we have satellite offices in the
ot her boroughs so people have a place to go? Because
a lot of these seniors won't go into Manhattan. They
won't get on a subway. They won't get on a bus, and
alot of themcan't. So what I'd like to see are
services. You know, each borough has a borough hall
If there could be soneone placed in that place.

It doesn't have to be five days a week,
seven hours a day. It could be, you know, at certain
ti mes where peopl e can have access to the hel p that
they need. And have one person in that office be

able to help them W help nmany seniors, many
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seniors and we can help themfill out their
applications. But we need city services in the other
bor oughs where peopl e have access. | have
i ntroduced, and | happen to be one of the prinmes on
this bill, but I introduced |egislation before |
voted the $50, 000 i ncone, the $29,000 to $50, 000
i ncrease, which is wonderful. But in tw years, |'m
worried. |'mworried what happens, and | had
i ntroduced | egislation that the | egislation be |inked
to the Consunmer Price Index. As it goes up, so does
SCRIE. How do you feel about that?

SARA MEYERS: The Adm nistration supports
t hat .

COUNCI L MEMBER KOSLOW TZ: They do
support that?

SARA MEYERS:. [interposing] They do.

COUNCI L MEMBER KOSLOW TZ: GCkay, now what
do we have to do? W have to go to Al bany. W have
to speak to our friends in Al bany, and tell them what
we want to do with this.

SARA MEYERS: W& will inplenent it, and
we support that.

COUNCI L MEMBER KOSLOW TZ: Well, that's

very good to hear. It makes nme happy as a senior it
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makes ne happy. 1'Il never have SCRIE, but it makes
nme happy. So, okay, and al so do you foresee any
problens with that?

SARA MEYERS: | don't foresee any
problens with the inplementati on and adm ni stration

of it. W currently do sone things nore for the DRIE

Program
COUNCI L MEMBER KOSLOW TZ: For the -- ?
SARA MEYERS: DRI E Program - -
COUNCI L MEMBER KOSLOW TZ: [i nter posi ng]
Ri ght, right.

SARA MEYERS: -- for people with
di sabilities.

COUNCI L MEMBER KOSLOW TZ: Okay. Thank
you very nuch.

SARA MEYERS: You're wel cone.

CHAI RPERSON FERRERAS: Thank you Counci
Menmber Koslowi tz. Council Menber Cornegy foll owed by
Counci | Menber Levi ne.

COUNCI L MEMBER CORNEGY: Good afternoon.
So | as sonmeone who prior to being a council nenber
served as a Legislative Policy Analyst on aging for
sonme tinme, this is exciting to ne this nove if

increasing the threshold nowin ny district -- Well,




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

COW TTEE ON AG NG JO NTLY WTH THE COWM TTEE ON FI NANCE 52

i n Brooklyn where you have the second hi ghest nunber
of SCRIE recipients. So while |I'mexcited about the
increase, | know for a fact that a |ot of the nmenbers
innmy district and a lot of the constituents in ny
district that are seniors will be able to benefit
fromthe increase. |'mconcerned, though, about not
havi ng t hem have access to the information |ike
having a wal k-in center. And |I'm al so concerned
about the adm nistration's capacity to deal with the
new applications that are com ng because | prom sed
that I"'mtelling in my district. So you're going to
get a whol e bunch of applications from Brooklyn for
sure based on ne having dealt with this for a
protracted period of tinme in ny district as Policy
Anal yst. How did you or what is your nethodol ogy to
deal with the increase of applications that will be
fl ooded in from Brooklyn, | prom se you

SARA MEYERS: W | ook forward to that.
W have done a |lot of data analysis on this. W've
spent a lot of time over the past two years staffing
up, doing an exceptional anount of training with our
staff. W have really strong | eadership in the SCRI E
Unit, and we know exactly now what type of staffing

we need to process in a speedy amount of tinme, a set




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

COW TTEE ON AG NG JO NTLY WTH THE COWM TTEE ON FI NANCE 53

anount of applications that will increase. And we
have an expectation of what's coming in, and we've

al ready been in discussions with OVMB about increasing
our staffing. And we're conmtted to doing that, and
maki ng sure that we're staffed -- our response tine
doesn't suffer, and our custoner service doesn't
suffer either.

COUNCI L MEMBER CORNEGY: So | want to
hear on record say that | have desk space in ny
office. So while you're figuring out how you're
going to ranp up, in Central Brooklyn there will be a
space available to you starting tonorrow.

SARA MEYERS: Thank you. W already have
desks avail abl e.

CHAI RPERSON FERRERAS: W' ve been joi ned
by Council Menber Rodriguez. Now we will have
Counci| Menber Levine followed by Council Menber
Deut sch.

COUNCI L MEMBER LEVI NE: Thank you, Madam
Chair. Good afternoon. Thanks for being here. |
have a few questions about a sister programto SCRIE
which is DRIE, Disability Rent |Increase Exenption. It
m ght be nore accurate to call it a poor step-

sibling. As you know, there's not parity between the
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two progranms. The cutoff incone for DRIE is
currently $20,000 for an individual, a single

i ndi vidual, which is far | ess than what SCRI E was
even before this wel conmed increase that we're
anticipating. | guess our first question is do you
support parity for these two prograns?

SARA MEYERS: You nean in concept do |
support parity?

COUNCI L MEMBER LEVINE: I n concept.

SARA MEYERS: Yes.

COUNCI L MEMBER LEVI NE: Ckay, so the
Adm ni stration doesn't have a position on that?

SARA MEYERS: | think the Adm nistration
-- we have not spoke specifically, but |I'msure that
the Admi nistration would support it. They're very
much behi nd SCRI E.

COUNCI L MEMBER LEVI NE: Not behind DRI E
you nean, yes?

SARA MEYERS: Yeah. |I'msorry. They're
much behind SCRIE. So, therefore, | believe they
woul d be very nuch behi nd DRI E.

COUNCI L MEMBER LEVI NE: Ckay, just to put
this in context, $20,000. |If an individual has

wor ked, had a career then their Social Security
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i ncore al one would |ikely be higher than $20, 0000.

So | eaving people who are really on the margi ns by
any, | think, fair neasure are excluded fromthis
program And | don't have to tell anyone in this
roomthat there are neighborhoods in this city where
your rent alone could exceed $20,000 a year. So this
is -- people who are in that in-between |evel are
really squeezed very hard. You spoke extensively
about your Qutreach to potential SCRIE recipients.

Do you have simlar robust Qutreach to potential DRIE
recipients? Could you say a word or two about that?

SARA MEYERS:

COUNCI L MEMBER LEVI NE: Sure, | nmean when
| -- even though DRIE has nuch fewer participants in
t he program wherever we speak about SCRIE, we speak
about DRIE. W do simlar mailings, simlar follow
up. CQur wal k-in center and our custoner service
group is SCRIE and DRI E conbi ned, and we are trained
-- We are a sponsor on to them The increase is the
sane. So | want the adm nistration of the two
prograns to be identical, and we're fully conmtted

to them
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COUNCI L MEMBER LEVI NE: But you hi ghli ght
in your testinony Qutreach to senior specific events,
whi ch | appl aud.

SARA MEYERS: Well, this hearing is about
SCRIE. | think that's why.

COUNCI L MEMBER LEVINE: Which is great,
but is there Qutreach to events that m ght be nore
targeted the state with New Yorkers?

SARA MEYERS: | don't have that specific
information, but |I'm happy to get back to you.

COUNCI L MEMBER LEVI NE: And you have a
staff person currently that's dedicated to
interfacing with DFTA and Qutreach for SCRIE, is that
correct?

SARA MEYERS: We col |l aborate on events
t oget her, yes.

COUNCI L MEMBER LEVINE: But do you have a
staff person who's assigned to coll aboration with the
Mayor's OFfice on people with disabilities?

SARA MEYERS:. [interposing] Wth
disabilities. | don't knowif we have a specific
staff person, but we certainly are in touch with
them and they're in touch with nme about questions

related to DRI E
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COUNCI L MEMBER LEVINE: In the Mayor's
Ofice it's known by its acronymand it's MOPED
SARA MEYERS: Yes.
COUNCI L MEMBER LEVINE: It's very small
| think they have a total staff or seven or eight.
s it your opinion that they're adequately staffed to
now return to DRIE. [sic]
SARA MEYERS: Again, | can't answer that.
COUNCI L MEMBER LEVINE: What is the total
nunber of DRIE recipients in New York City currently?
SARA MEYERS: It's a little bit under
9, 000.
COUNCI L MEMBER LEVINE: And you said --7?
SARA MEYERS: A little bit under 9, 000.
COUNCI L MEMBER LEVINE: 9,000 and coul d
you assess the total nunber of eligible New Yorkers?
SARA MEYERS: |'mnot sure of that. |
have not | ooked specifically at that because for --
you have to for the DRIE the eligibility there are
sonme simlarities in that you have to be in the right
unit, and you have to have X anmount of inconme and pay
one-third. But then you also have to receive SSI, or

SDI or sone disability. So | haven't |ooked at the
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data bout people who receive those in conjunction
with the other requirenents.

COUNCI L MEMBER LEVINE: [|s there newer
rate for DRIE conparable to that of SCRIE?

SARA MEYERS: Yes.

COUNCI L MEMBER LEVI NE: And you tal ked
about how your goals on turnaround tine on initia
and newer applications. | think it was four and nine
days.

SARA MEYERS: It's the sane.

COUNCI L MEMBER LEVINE: That's the sane,
okay. Thank you very nuch, dear

SARA MEYERS: You're wel cone.

CHAlI RPERSON FERRERAS: And we're going to
be followng up with you in our letter after the
Conmittee on getting simlar information. Thank you.
And now we' Il have Council Menber Deutsch foll owed by
Counci| Menber Rodriguez, but | think he'll be back
in the roomby that tine.

COUNCI L MEMBER DEUTSCH:  Thank you, Madam
Chair. Good afternoon and thank you for the
attending this thing this afternoon. What,

specifically or how specifically is the Qutreach for
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the renewal process. Wat is exactly done? Is it by
mail? Is it by email --

SARA MEYERS: [interposing] For renewals

COUNCI L MEMBER DEUTSCH: -- for renewal s?

SARA MEYERS: -- and we have the three
letters that we send to the tenants and the tenants'
representatives and then to the landlord. W also
send a list to people who don't -- who are close to
losing their benefits to the Council. W also have
lists on our website that |ist when people's benefits
expire, and if they have a pending application with
us. So those are our efforts.

COUNCI L MEMBER DEUTSCH: Thank you, and
how many di fferent | anguages does it go out by mail?

SARA MEYERS: By nuail the letter is in
English, but we have insert with the letter that is
i n Chinese, Spanish, and Russian that says sonething
to the effect that this letter is very inportant
about your benefits. And encourages people to
contact soneone to help themtranslate it.

COUNCI L MEMBER DEUTSCH: |Is there also an
Qutreach for possible applicants that are qualified

for this programto get a 1062 and they nay be
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eligible to be part of the programfor SCRIE. Do you
have an Qutreach for that?

SARA MEYERS: Yes, we have an CQutreach
unit in Finance, and we have an CQutreach coordi nator
for seniors, and we also work in conjunction with the
Departnent for the Aging on trying to get the word
out to anyone who may be eligible about the program
So all of our Qutreach events we tal k about SCRIE and
the Departnent for the Aging events are all related
to opportunities for seniors. And for Finance we do
specific events for seniors, and even at our general
events we'll bring SCRIE into their applications.

COUNCI L MEMBER DEUTSCH: What dat abase do
you use to do the Qutreach for potential people that
qualify for this progranf

SARA MEYERS: Database? |'m not sure.

COUNCI L MEMBER DEUTSCH: Yeah, how do you
get the nanes of the people that are 62 who conme up
here as wel | ?

SARA MEYERS. [interposing] W don't do -
- we don't have direct information about who may be
eligible. W spoke a little bit about this earlier.
We've had a difficult tinme identifying specific data

sets of people due to the nultiple criteria that you
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need to neet to be eligible for the program \Wich
is why a lot of our efforts have been public Qutreach
events, or people who are already receiving benefits
for people who are | ow i ncone.

COUNCI L MEMBER DEUTSCH: So there's no
dat abase that, well, that you have access to, of how
got who mght be eligible if there is an eventual
area or sonething |ike Aging has?

SARA MEYERS: No, their criteria for
SCRIE is that you have to live in a rent regul ated
bui l ding, of which there are a nmllion units in New
York City. And you have to be 62 and you have to
make | ess than currently $29, 000, but in the future
will be $50,000, and then you can't -- you have to
pay nore than one-third of your incone in rent. And
so unfortunately there is no database that hel ps get
at that population. So if you have any ideas, we'd
|ove to hear it, but there's no data set that kind of
brings those four criteria together in a targeted
way.

COUNCI L MEMBER DEUTSCH: Okay, |1'd just
like to nake one reconmendation. | have a very |large
-- | have a very diverse district, and | think |I have

a very |l arge Russian-Anerican popul ati on. Wen they
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receive let’s say Con-Ed bills, or from Keyspan, they
al ready know that this is phone bill or gas bill
because it's nonthly. |If they would receive
sonmething from SCRIE, and a | ot of tines people get
junk mail and they just throwit in the garbage.
Maybe on the envel ope there should be sonmething in
different |anguages just letting them know what's
encl osed, what's in the envelope. This way it
doesn't get thrown out. And naybe that will prevent
the 6% of new occupations for the conmunities m ght
just throw it in the garbage saying what's encl osed.
So, thank you very nuch

SARA MEYERS: Sure.

[ Pause]

CHAI RPERSON FERRERAS: Thank you, Counci
Menber Deutsch. We will have a follow up question by
Counci| Menber Rosenthal. W' re actually just
chatting so we're going to ask the sane questi ons.
So I'lIl have ny col |l eague - -

COUNCI L MEMBER ROSENTHAL: Exactly. This
is on behalf of tears for us tonight. W both
noti ced sonething at the sane tinme, but thank you for
giving ne the privilege of asking. This is about the

recent audits, and this is newto ne as a new counci
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menber. So part of this is bringing ne up to speed.
But the audits that took place in 2009, 2010, 2012
about school benefits that went to decease
i ndividuals, are you famliar with those audits?
SARA MEYERS: Yes, | am
COUNCI L MEMBER ROSENTHAL: Okay, new to
me | guess, but not to everyone el se so good. So
just a practical common sense question, and the
information | have here shows that it totaled $11.8

mllion, which in nmy mnd pays for half of the free

lunch programthat we'd like to give out. |Is the
case that those checks are cashed -- were cashed?
SARA MEYERS: Well, let ne explain a

little bit about how the works, how the benefit is
given. W don't actually give checks to anyone. The
SCRIE benefit is given as a tax credit --

COUNCI L MEMBER ROSENTHAL: [i nterposing]
Yes.

SARA MEYERS. -- on a landlord' s property
tax, and in the case of the audit, one of the things
that as you nmay be aware when the adm nistration of
the program from DFTA to Fi nance happened, when the
transfer happened in '09, we had sone stunbling

bl ocks along the way. And we certainly have spoken
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about that publicly, and have really commtted to
making this what | think is one of our best run
prograns. So one of things we weren't doi ng was
doing an audit of people who had been -- who were
deceased who were getting benefits. Benefits stop
when their new application is not submtted. So they
weren't going for years and years and years, but if
they had passed away between -- within the two-year
renewal period, and no one cane forth and told us
about this -- Wich we do as an aide, we do have a
| ot of people that are proactive and tell us. And we
were audited in 2010 by the Controller's Ofice, and
they identified this noney that had been given.
Subsequently, we went and took all the noney back,
and the noney didn't stay as allocated. And ever
since then, we match on a nonthly basis with the
Social Security DFTA Master File. W were audited
again, and they found -- the Controller found that we
were really doing that. So we do that nonthly now.
COUNCI L MEMBER ROSENTHAL: So | want to
t hank Tani sha Edwards, who has really paid nore
attention to this, on the staff here at the Gty
Council. | mean what she's showing ne is that with

the first audit -- | understand what you're saying
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that it's a lower tactic basically is what happens.
But there was still after the cross-check $8.3 ml -
$8.5 mllion that was left on the table. And the
response from DOF was that the Controller overstated
t he nunber of deceased tenants. However, that was
not docunented, that there was, in fact --

SARA MEYERS: Fromthe first audit.

CARYN RESNICK:  This is the first audit.

COUNCI L MEMBER ROSENTHAL | under st and.
It's the first audit.

SARA MEYERS. [interposing] Right, from
the first audit what happened --

COUNCI L MEMBER ROSENTHAL: Mbving onto
t he second, but --

SARA MEYERS. [interposing] Wth the
first audit --

COUNCI L MEMBER ROSENTHAL: -- but
what ever.

SARA MEYERS: -- they said $11 nmillion.
We came back with $8 m|lion because what ended up
happening i s when soneone dies in a SCRI E househol d,
they can transfer their benefit. There's a benefit
transfer to let's say a spouse, who's been in the

apartnent. So we can identify -- they could -- the
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Controller's Ofice identified that the wife had
passed away. But then we worked to nmake sure that
t he husband, who was eligible for the benefit, was
transferred. It's been a few years, but | believe
that it was the $11 nmillion that becane really $8
mllion, if that makes sense.

[ background di scussi on]

COUNCI L MEMBER ROSENTHAL: | nove on and
| can multi-task, but not really.

SARA MEYERS: (kay.

COUNCI L MEMBER ROSENTHAL: So what |'m
hearing -- so noving onto the second. All right,
good, if we can.

SARA MEYERS: Sure, | have it here.

COUNCI L MEMBER ROSENTHAL: Thank you. So
the death matches -- excuse the crassness of the
| anguage -- needs to go against all the open
accounts, right, because you're tal king about spouses
that might be able to pick up the benefit, right? But
what we're hearing is that for -- that you're not
doing the sane thing for the renewals, that you're
doi ng t he mat ches.

SARA MEYERS: Yes, we are.
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COUNCI L MEMBER ROSENTHAL: But yes we
are. kay. However

TANI SHA EDWARDS: Tani sha Edwards, Chi ef
Counsel for the Finance Division and the Finance
Conmittee. W just need clarification because in the
second audit the Controller noticed that the cross-
checks that you do with the -- against the DFTA
master file for the initial applications, the sane
wasn't done for renewal applications. So he
recomended - -

SARA MEYERS:. It was not. I'Il just
clarify. Yes, in the initial versus renewal that had
nothing to do with that. Wat it had to do with is
With current versus inactive. W were running a list
every nmonth against current recipients, but what they
found was -- and we -- this is what we agreed. They
were correct with that. W weren't expandi ng our
match to it because sonetines two peopl e who had
received a benefit were no | onger receiving the
benefit, but then subsequently they appeared on the
list. So let's say -- Because sonetines the Socia
Security data that we get, their data they nmay cone a
year |ater and have soneone appear on the list, and

t hey may show us that soneone had passed, who is no
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| onger currently receiving SCRIE, but they passed
away two nonths before their SCRIE benefit expired.
And we thought that was a good point by the
Controller. So we expanded our query at that tine,
but we weren't just matching against current SCRIE
recipients. W expanded it to natch agai nst everyone
who had been given a credit even if they weren't
currently receiving SCR E

TANI SHA EDWARDS: (kay, so that's okay.

So lets see, just so we're clear on the record. So
after the Controller's recommendati on you i npl enented

SARA MEYERS: Yes.

TANI SHA EDWARDS: -- what he suggested in
that letter?

SARA MEYERS: Yes.

TANI SHA EDWARDS: So, then now -- Ckay,
so excellent. So you're now doing the cross-checks.
Perfect. Good j ob.

COUNCI L MEMBER ROSENTAL: Thank you, but
that also brings to mnd so the retroactive, were you
able to call back any noney?

SARA MEYERS: Yes, we take it back as a

debit against the |andlords' property tax.
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COUNCI L MEMBER ROSENTHAL: How nuch were
you able to call back in the debit?

COUNCIL MEMBER: Well, | guess -- | don't
have specific nunbers. W debit annually about $8
mllion in conparison to $150 mllion, but that's not
all necessarily related to death. Because we pay --
the way SCRIE works is that a | andl ord gets six
nmonths of credit in advance.

COUNCI L MEMBER ROSENTHAL: Ckay.

SARA MEYERS: So if soneone noves let's
say in nonth three, we'll take back three nmonths. So
it's not all related to people passing on. [sic]

COUNCI L MEMBER ROSENTHAL: Okay. Is
there anything that we could be doing to make sure
that these -- both call backs and the cross-checks
are happeni ng?

SARA MEYERS: | nean | think --

COUNCI L MEMBER ROSENTHAL: That we could
do in the Council. Do you need -- | don't know.

SARA MEYERS: | nean | think we do our
data matches with the master file every nonth opening
up to everyone who is receiving the benefit, and
anyone el se who noves. You know, |andlords are

required to notify us. Oten they do. So just if
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know of anyone who's vacated their apartnment |et us
know.

COUNCI L MEMBER ROSENTHAL: Ckay, Counci
Menber MIler would like ne to al so ask could there
be another reason -- God bless themall. Could there
be anot her reason that sonebody m ght rightly drop
off the roll that we're not capturing. So it's
possi bly nmovi ng, possibly deceased, possibly an
i ncrease for some reason in their income. | don't
know.

SARA MEYERS:. That woul dn't have anyt hi ng
to do with the debit that we were speaking of. But
it just would be sonmeone who --

COUNCI L MEMBER ROSENTHAL: \When t hey
reapplied, that they would --

SARA MEYERS: W would find that their
i ncone was too high, right.

COUNCI L MEMBER ROSENTHAL: So those are
the only two reasons. Any others possibly that you
can think of? Are we not capturing any popul ati on?

SARA MEYERS: [|I'mnot quite sure of the

questi on.
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COUNCI L MEMBER ROSENTHAL: Are we
capturing all the popul ation of people who should no
| onger be continuing on SCRI E?

SARA MEYERS: You know, people who are
guess -- whose incone is no longer -- | nean --

COUNCI L MEMBER ROSENTHAL: Moved, incone?

SARA MEYERS: Yes.

COUNCI L MEMBER ROSENTHAL: Thank you very

much.

SARA MEYERS: You're wel cone.

COUNCI L MEMBER: [of f nic]

CO CHAI RPERSON CHI N Counci | Menber,
Rodri guez, do you still have a question?

COUNCI L MEMBER RODRI GUEZ: Thanks a | ot.
Thank you. 1'd also like to thank the chair, and I'd

also like to share ny di sappointnent to the previous
adm ni stration knowing that we are in a new day in
New York City. But definitely when it cone to the
Qutreach and data, this is sonething that we have to
be accountable. | know that the Chairman -- the
Chairs they will follow up. But I think that we have
to work wwth a plan. There has to be a specific. |
think that we have to make a conmtnent in a six-

nonth period we need to know how many senior citizens
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are eligible to SCRIE, and they are not enrolled in
this program Like this is so critical. This is
sonmething like this program m ght nmake it different
with soneone who will be pushed out of their
apartnent, and now they're living in a |Iivingroom or
being honeless. So I think that -- and for nme, |I'm
personally so frustrated because | was at the hearing

at 250 Broadway, and | was | think |ast year, two

years ago.
SARA MEYERS: Two years ago.
COUNCI L MEMBER RODRI GUEZ: And we asked a
question |like -- the sanme question and know ng t hat
two years have passed, and still we don't have that

data is so frustrating. So hopefully, with the new
adm nistration | hope that -- and with the new

| eadership, | think that I would |ike to work
together. And for you to really see it as a
priority. W need to know -- we need to know where
do they live. W need to know what is the plan to
enroll every single senior citizens who can benefit
fromthe SCRIE Program Sonething with the Qutreach.
How many staff do you have doi ng Qutreach

SARA MEYERS: I think four
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COUNCI L MEMBER RODRI GUEZ: Four. That's
not enough, right? And |'munhappy that | heard that
you said that you are in conversation with the OVB
increasing the nunbers. So | think are you -- do you
have any particul ar nunber that you' re asking OVB to
i ncrease to?

SARA MEYERS: W currently don't have a
request in for Qutreach staff. That's sonething that
we can discuss. | would say that four staff is just
for the Department of Finance. The Departnent for
t he Agi ng has people who work on Qutreach, as well.

COUNCI L MEMBER RODRI GUEZ: So | woul d
like to now suggest to ny Chairman of this commttee
al so that when we continue in legislation with the
adm ni stration, that we think about what particul ar
nunber of staff doing Qutreach so that we can get
back to the adm nistration that this is inportant.

We cannot rely on board of election. W cannot rely
-- W need to have a plan, and this is not -- we
don't have to take in to like, you know, we cone back
like two years before. W don't enough people to
start to go and do Qutreach. W need to have a -- we
need to provide the nen and wonen power that you need

so that we can have a group plan on how to do
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Qutreach. So that every single senior citizen who
gquality, who are eligible for the SCRIE program can
really be enrolled. So this is ny reconmendation
because as | said it's a new admnistration. |It's
new | eadership, nore inclusive, nore conmmtted on
wor ki ng together, but | believe that we need a pl an.
| believe that data has to be provided in a good tine
frame to all of this conmttee. W need to increase
t he nunber of staff of the Qutreach, too. Thank you.

SARA MEYERS: | will say that although he
hasn't officially started, and he did want to be
here, our Comm ssioner that starts on May 12th,
Conmi ssi oner Ji ha, Sanara Karasek [sp?] and | did
neet with himlast week, and he's very conmitted to
not only Qutreach, but increasing the nunber of
peopl e who get the benefit. And we're going to be
working closely with himon a plan. So | just wanted
to reiterate that.

COUNCI L MEMBER RODRI GUEZ:  Thank you

CO CHAI RPERSON CHI N Next, Counci
Menber Treyger, a question?

COUNCI L MEMBER TREYGER:  Thank you,
Chairs, you're welcone. | just want to first echo

the cormments frommy colleagues that it's really
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important for us to have a clear picture of those
seniors who are eligible, but are on SCRIE. Because
we will be a part of that Qutreach effort, and | do
think that the agencies nmust do their part. But that
data is critical for us to obtain. | also, you know,
again, | have a district with a very large i mn grant
popul ation. And | want to nmake sure that we break

t hrough any | anguage or cultural barriers to make

sure that all famlies -- all seniors are notified of
t hese benefits and these rights. So | just want to
echo that. | am curious to know about does the

Departnment of Finance have any data because the
majority of Sandy victins, the majority of those who
were affected were actually tenants. Do you know --
do you have any data about the nunber of SCRIE
reci pients that were displaced by the stornf

SARAH MEYERS: | do not. | can -- we can
certainly try and | ook at sonething, but you' d have
to give us the right direction about what you're
| ooki ng for.

COUNCI L MEMBER TREYCGER  Because |'m
maki ng sure that -- there were prograns put in place
that were for Sandy victins who were di splaced. Most

of them were tenants, and nmany of themdidn't know
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about for exanple, TDAP, Tenporary Di saster

Assi stance Programto help renters, and help them
But, of course, there were also a high nunber of
seniors in Coney Island and other parts of the city
that were hurt by the storm \Wether their SCRE
benefits traveled with them wherever they ended up.
And |I'mjust wondering if there's any information
that your office could share with mne or the

comm ttees about making sure that everyone is
receiving benefits that they're entitled to even
post-Sandy. So right now, you don't have any data
with you avail abl e?

SARAH MEYERS: Not with ne. | nmean, but
we do obvi ously know the buildings that were affected
by Sandy, and I cold do sone data anal ysis based on
SCRIE tenants in those buildings. |If sonmeone just --
so you know, if someone wants to nove to another rent
regulated unit, they can take their SCRIE benefit
with them There's allowance for that.

COUNCI L MEMBER TREYGER: But | nean there
are tenporary housing situations going on. |'m not
sure if they were subject market prices. And quite
frankly, if they're a SCRIE recipient, they should be

recei ving those benefits anywhere they go especially
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during those difficult times. So any data that you
woul d have on that, | would truly appreciate. And
again, just to go back to my original point, we nust
make sure that every senior gets every bit of
assi stance, which they're entitled to. And | would
gladly open up ny offices. | know Council Menber
Cornegy nentioned as well we'll be resource centers,
but we need to get the word out. This is a
significant addition to capture nore seniors into
SCRIE. O course, our goal is to nmake this
per manent, and not just a two-year program But |
first want to nake sure that we're capturing every
eligible senior, and nmaking sure that this process is
snooth, and make sure it gets done right. | thank
the Chairs for having this hearing today. Thank you.
CO CHAI RPERSON CHIN:  Thank you. | guess
as Council Menber Treyger said, Al of us, all the
council menbers are nore than willing to help wth
the Qutreach effort. | really want you to reach out,
and really work with us. One |ast question | have is
that | know that in your testinony it was really good
to hear that DOF is being flexible, that in ternms of
col l ecting docunentations for incone, you nentioned

about that you accept a signed letter fromapplicants
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stating that if they have no inconme in that year and
why. And even just a letter. | think that's great.
What happens in a case where you m ght have an
appli cant who provided i ncone docunentation, but did
not provide a Social Security nunmber? Are you still
going to be able to process that application?

SARAH MEYERS:. Yes.

CO CHAI RPERSON CHI N:  Yes? GCkay. Thank

you.
SARAH MEYERS: You're wel cone.
CO CHAI RPERSON CHI N:  Any ot her
questions? | guess not. So we have a | ot of people

waiting to testify. So | wanted to thank you for
com ng today, and we | ooking forward to working with
you on getting the word out there to increase nore
SCRI E applicants. Thank you.

SARAH MEYERS: Thank you very nuch

[ Pause]

CO CHAI RPERSON CHIN:  Ckay, we want to
invite up the first panel. Mary Ann Rot hman, Counci
of New York for Co-op and Condo; Bobby Sackman - -

CHAI RPERSON FERRERAS: Cami |l a Soj ourn.

[sp?]
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CO CHAI RPERSON CHIN:  Camilla Sojourn
and Mary Fox.

CHAI RPERSON FERRERAS: [off m c]

CO CHAIRPERSON CHIN:.  Ch, within nmy left,
okay. W have a lot of people waiting to testify so
we're going to put this panel, everyone on the clock
three mnutes, but we're going to allow nore tine for
guestions. Thank you.

[ Pause]

[ background di scussi on]

CO CHAI RPERSON CHIN:  Are you ready?

Just press the button and pl ease state your nane.

MARY ANN ROTHVAN:  Good afternoon. My
nanme is Mary Ann Rothman. |'mthe Executive Director
of the Council of New York Cooperatives and
Condomi ni uns, which is a nenbership organi zation for
co-ops and condos | ocated throughout the five
boroughs of New York City and beyond. More than
170,000 New York fam lies make their hones in our
menber bui |l di ngs, which span the full econonmic from
very nodest housing to sone very upscale --

CO CHAI RPERSON CHIN:  Can you pull the

mc closer to you?
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MARY ANN ROTHVAN: -- to sone very
upscal e dwel lings. Qur organization offers strong
support for Intro Nunber 243, which raises the incone
eligibility cap for seniors citizens to qualify for
SCRIE. This program appropriately provides
government help for |ow and noderate i ncone seniors
who rent their hones. Many coops and condos have
seniors who opted to remain in their hones when the
bui | di ngs were renovated and were converted or co-ops
or condos.

In a nunber of instances the sponsors who
owned these units defaulted or wal ked away | eavi ng
the co-op or condo responsible for adm nistering
these units. H gher SCRIE thresholds will help the
rent regul ated seniors in our nmenber co-ops and
condos to continue to live affordably in their hones.
New York City has a programthat's parallel to SCRIE
for senior home owners. |It's called the Senior
Citizen Honeowner's Exenption, and the
representatives of the Departnent of Finance did
mention it in passing, but not as nuch as | would
like to see it nentioned.

It shields | ow and noderate incone

honeowners, sharehol ders, and unit owners from
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increases in their costs. W respectfully point out
that these seniors are equally deserving of an
increase in their eligibility threshold so that they,
too, can afford to continue to live on in their
hones. Please anend this |egislation or introduce
followup legislation to include a parallel increase
to our senior honmeowners. Thank you for this
opportunity.

[ background di scussi on]

BOBBY SACKMAN. My nane is Bobby Sackman,
Director of Public Policy with the Council of Senior
Centers and Services. And first, this is a wonderful
nonment to have this hearing, and thank you everybody,
Counci | woman Chin and Ferreras, and everybody here.
We're thrilled that it's gone up to $50,000. As an
advocate | have to admit that was even hi gher than we
asked for. So this is a rare nonent, and we are, of
course, concerned that -- | can't imagine this would
go backwards in two years. But obviously we're
al ready tal king about it, and I"msure we will be.

So | just thought what | have in ny
testinony in front of you, we did a major housing
policy paper released in February. So a lot of the

facts of the rent burden of seniors is really in the
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report and it's in here. [I'mnot going to go through
it now | assuming you all saw the New York Tinmes
article a few days ago that covered the whole -- the

rent burden of seniors across the city. So just to
sort of follow up on sone of the things that were
sai d today.

One of the questions that was raised by
Counci | woman Rose was about this idea of a roll back.
And it is an idea of CSCS has had, and we're not the
only ones. If you get in and you're already that 40%
to 50% | evel, you're really living at an
unsustainable level. So it's the rent, it's the
food, it's the nedication that neets that scenario.
Is there a way for the Gty to go back? 1It's not a
cheap item Nobody says it is, but just to look into
and see if there's something the City can afford to
hel p seniors go back once they're in.

I think that would make a huge difference
for people. W've heard a |lot of talk today about
the need for Qutreach and enroll ment. SCRIE has been
under-utilized since SCRIE has existed, and it's been
a shane forever. And so, how do we all work
together? And | think one of the things is there's

no Qutreach. There's no public awareness canpaign,




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

COW TTEE ON AG NG JO NTLY WTH THE COWM TTEE ON FI NANCE 83

and it's not just targeting older thenselves. If I
was sitting on a subway, and | saw an ad, Do you want
to freeze your nonis rent?

Boy, | would take the nunber down really,
really quickly. So I think we have --there are
things we can do as a city on a very comunity base
| evel, as we've discussed today. But also, this is
part of the Affordable Housing Plan that the Gty
shoul d have. You can't build your way out of a
crisis. This is part of preservation. So any way
the Gty or anybody could use its resources to target
all kinds of popul ations, again, not just the ol der
adul ts thensel ves.

The other thing it was about, and |I don't
know i f soneone el se m ght be discussing this today,
but could there be -- even though it nmay not be
overall a lot of seniors that don't need to be
certified. For those who don't, could there be
what's known as sort of a one-shot where you pay your
rent and the City hel ps you pay your rent in arrears.
So you keep people on the programif they fall
behi nd. Because if you lose SCRIE, that's the death

node. | mean overni ght your rent has escal at ed.
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And then to consider renting the nunber
of years for recertification. That m ght be a state
issue. We could look intois it also sonmething the
City could do because that's [bell] the problem One
nore thing and 1'mdone. R ght to Counsel in Housing
Court. There's a couple of bills floating around
now. There's a coalition that's cone together, and
really | think what we all want to see is sone kind
of legislation Right to Counsel where many
popul ations but, of course, seniors will get their
fair share in that. Thank you.

MARY FOX: Chairs Chin, Ferreras, counci
menbers and staff, good afternoon and thank you for
the opportunity to speak about Intro Nunmber 243, the
Resol ution relating to |inking incone threshold
increases for the SCRIE Exenption Programto changes
in the Consuner Price Index, in general oversight of
the SCRIE Program M nane is Mary Fox, and |'ma
Senior Staff Attorney at the New York Legal
Assistance Group. | amjoined by Canmilla Shedin
Associ ate Director of the Housing Law and Menber of
NYLAG s Legal Health Division; and Elizabeth Essex

[sp?] Stewart, our Special Projects Coordinator.
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W commend all of those who have worked
on both Intro 243 and the above resolution, and
strong urge the passage of both. NYLAG has hundreds
of clients who are seniors, many of whomlived in
rent stabilized or otherw se subsidized apartnents
fromwhomthis increase in yearly incone would be a
great relief who SCRIE is the only neans to remain in
af f ordabl e honmes, which they've occupi ed for decades.
This increase in income for SCRIE eligibility is a
great stride towards keeping seniors housed, as well
as maintaining New York City's dw ndling affordable
stock for a little |onger.

In order to strengthen Intro 243, we urge
the Council to amend the | anguage to allow for
retroactive benefits at the rate at which the
benefits were previously frozen to anyone who had
SCRIE in the past, but who was no |onger eligible
because of his or her inconme was over the current
cap. For exanple, NYLAGis currently assisting an
el derly cancer patient with an incone of $31, 000.

She and her husband have lived in a rent stabilized
apartnment for over ten years. Wth SCRIE they pay
$1,800 and -- I'msorry. $1,085 a nonth since 2009.

Their income rose slightly, and now they do not fall
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into the protections of the current |aw.
Unfortunately, their grace period is ending one nonth
before this lawwill go into effect. And as such,
they will have to pay the rent with the increases
fromthe past five years, which will total -- The

| egal regulated rent will now be $1,419 a nonth,
maki ng her nonthly rent go up al nost 40%

The problemis particularly acute for the
el derly, low incone people with serious health
problens. As nedical bills are not included as a
deduction in calculating SCRIE inconme eligibility
many seniors with inconmes above the current threshold
are struggling to remain in their honmes and pay their
medi cal bills. In addition, many seniors may appear
as if they have di sposabl e i ncome because they're
slightly above the inconme threshold to qualify for
Medi caid. However, as Medicare only covers 80% of
many nedi cal expenses, we see many seniors at our
| egal clinics paying out-of-pocket for hone health
care, doctor's appointnents, and other |ife saving
medi cal needs. [bell] Thank you. And, therefore,
by greatly reducing their actual disposable incone.

We have several other suggestions for the Nunmber 243,
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which are in our testinony, and we appreciate the
opportunity to testify here today.

FEMALE SPEAKER  Yeah, I'll just point
out. We have four points specifically that we were
hopi ng m ght be inplenented by SCRIE very quickly.
General ly speaking, SCRIE is a wonderful program and
we conmend everybody for it, all the advocates, and
all the Council for working on this, and increasing
the amount. It's wonderful. So, our gripes are
small. | just wanted to point themout in the hopes
of maki ng this wonderful program even better. And
one of the things we see as a huge problemis the
| ack of forns being avail able in | anguages ot her than
English. And | think that needs -- that's been
tal ked about today. It would be great if that could
be addressed sooner than later. And then if all the
fornms could be avail abl e online, regardless of which
agency that sonebody m ght be working with, and, of
course, not being able to access SCRIE through 311
properly has been a huge problem So |I know that
that was discussed earlier as well. So we just
wanted to point that out. But if we can help in
wor ki ng out a solution to any of those things in our

agency, we'd be happy to do so. Thank you very nuch.
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CHAI RPERSON FERRERAS: Thank you very
much for your testinmony. | just want to follow up on
two things. M. Rothman, we are clearly in
agreenment. Any tinme we can do additional savings,
we're on the right -- on the sane page with you. |
woul d just urge, and we can figure out. W need to
hear fromthe Council level, but clearly this is
state legislation. So any capacity that you woul d be
able to engage with this State Legislature would be
greatly beneficial. And we can al so do resol utions
and ot her types of advocacy, but, of course, | would
urge to send the thing to the State Legi sl ature.

MARY ANN ROTHVAN:  We'll work on it,
t hank you.

CHAI RPERSON FERRERAS: Thank you, and
al so for our wonderful NYLAG reps, Ms. Fox. | know
they're retroactive. | would say the sane thing, the
state legislation. If we could change it, we would
do it tonmorrow or yesterday probably. And in many
ways what you have nentioned with the | anguage we
both -- we have imm grant backgrounds. W both speak
ot her | anguages, and you do as well, as you just
said. And so we understand the urgencies fromthe

perspective of our own famlies, but also we
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represent New York City, and we understand we

cel ebrate our diversity all the tinme except we have
to interact wth agencies, and that's what we need to
get better at.

MARY FOX: Ckay, thank you.

CO CHAI RPERSON CHIN: | think we al so
want to -- | know that we have DOF people still here,
staff, right? So | would love to | ook at the insert
that you sent out in different |anguages, and maybe
there's a way that we can inprove upon it to make it
nore clear in ternms of this is a renewal
applications, and these are agencies that they could
reach out for help. So if we could take a | ook at
what you have now, and naybe we could help to nake it
better. Thank you.

MARY FOX: Thank you

CO CHAI RPERSON CHIN: Thank you all for
comng. GCkay, we're going to call up sonme seniors
who are here. Private, Debbie, if | pronounced it
right. Norma. | can get it fromNornma. Wat's your
| ast nane, Nornma.

NORMA SHRI ER:  Shrier.

CO CHAI RPERSON CHIN:  Oh, Shrier, okay.

Then Connie? Martin Cornfeld, and Patricia Steel.
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[ background di scussi on]

CO CHAI RPERSON CHIN: You coul d press the
button there and then state your nane. Thank you.

PRAVATI DEVI: Hi, ny nanme is Pravati
Devi [sp?]. Over the years |'ve testified as a young
di sabl ed person on Rent Increase Exenptions. Today,
as a senior |'mback again voicing ny objections to
the Intro before in its current form | can
understand that there are famlies who do need the
i ncrease proposed. But, if for exanple, the
i ndi vidual or couple receiving the Iinmt of $50,000
yearly, paid $50,000 of it on rent and $25,000 woul d
be left to live on. Unless there are unusua
expenses such as nedical, wouldn't $25, 000 be enough
for nost people to live on?

Does the Legislature renenber that SCRIE
was i ntended for the very poor such as nyself. | am
expected to live on $9,696 a year. Fromthat, | pay
$5,592 for rent. That |eaves ne $4, 104 for
everything else for the entire year, and I do have
SCRIE. | wonder how nmany here have thought about the
poor. There are many of us on the verge of
honel essness. | propose that this Intro be expanded

when the incone after paying rent is so low, Iike
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mne, a rollback in rent to 30% of our inconme can
make all of the difference in preventing
honel essness.

Wthout this, we will have nore seniors
becom ng honel ess, and | still support the younger
di sabl ed community on DRI E whose inconme limt remains
at $20,000. The disparity is shameful. Utimtely,
t he poorest on DRIE or SCRIE wi ||l becone honel ess
costing the governnment far in the end. Wuldn't it
be nore pragmatic to roll back our rent so this does
not happen. Please, do not pass Intro 243 as is.
Rat her, pass an expanded SCRIE programthat will make
a significant inpact in preventing nore honel essness.
It is nmy contention that this Intro should be
nodified to include a rollback in rent to 30% of the
i ncome when the frozen rent doesn't |leave a livable
anount to survive on. Thank you

NORMA SCHRIER: |'m Norma Schrier, and |
live in arent controlled apartnent on the Upper West
Side in co-op building of 70 apartnents. | amthe
only rent controlled tenant in the building. | have
lived in ny apartnment since 1962. Wen we noved in,
there was ny husband, ny nother, and one daughter.

Then anot her daughter was born. Now, there is only




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

COW TTEE ON AG NG JO NTLY WTH THE COWM TTEE ON FI NANCE 92

ny daughter and nyself. | would very much appreciate
being allowed to speak to you about ny circunstances
and ny nore seniors |like me who have lived in their
apartnments for a lifetine.

| want to thank Council Menber Chin for
introducing this SCRIE to the Gty Council. Allow ng
i ncome qualifications for SCRIE to increase from
$29,000 to $50,000. | also want to thank Assenbl yman
Bri an Kavanagh for getting this passed by the State
Legi sl ature, and to express our deep gratitude to him
and to Council Menber Chin. This year, 2014, we
received a 7.5%rent increase as well as a nonthly
fuel pass-along charge. M rent increase is $171.40
per nonth retroactive to January 1st. M fuel pass-
al ong charge is $187.19 per nonth retroactive to
January 1st as wel|.

| amthe only resident in ny building to
pay this fuel charge. M daughter, who is disabled,
and on Social Security does contribute to the rent as
much as she can. She has increased this anmount for
2014 in view of the increases. | amretired and on
Social Security as well. If | do not receive SCRIE,
| don't know how nuch |onger | can nanage. As senior

citizens, many of us have Social Security as our nain
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source of nmonthly incone. This year, our Soci al
Security income was 1.2% while our rent control, MR
was 7.5% There nmay be sone of us seniors who wl|
not be able to afford these increases.

What will we elimnate from our budgets
to cover this disparity? Should we cut our food
budgets or our nedicines? How do we choose? | have
| ooked carefully at all the itens in ny budget to see
what else | can elimnate, such as travel, new

cl ot hing, books, theater, et cetera. These have

al ready been elimnated. | frequent the library for
reading material, but perhaps | will be able to fill
ny new eyegl ass prescription. If | qualify for

SCRIE, the quality of ny Iife can inprove, and sone

of the stress | feel each nonth will be elimnm nated
because | will know that | can afford to pay ny rent.
Thank you

MORGAN VANTONI : My nane i s Morgan
Vantoni [sp?]. 1'm74 years old. 1've been in the
SCRIE programfor 12 years. | have a -- Well, |
received a letter fromthemthat |I was going to be
audited in October, and | sent themmny 1044, ny 1099,
and that was nmy only inconme. | received a letter

fromthemthat | was term nated because | was $470
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over the anbunt. | then went to the SCRIE office
down on John Street, and there instead of getting a
wel cone, a lady as the desk said, Sir, you're over by
$1.00. You've been terninated.

At the sane tine, there was an elderly
gentl eman there naybe 80 years old who was crying in
the office, and the lady told him Sir, you have to
| eave now because if you don't |eave, we'll call the
police and have you escorted out of the building. |
don't know what kind of wel come or who these people
are that are down there, but that's a public disgrace
how they run the office down there. You get no
wel cone. | go back to the Departnent of Aging to ask
for help, and they tell nme, Yes, you can go and seek
| egal aid. Once a nonth there's a neeting at the
bor ough houses up near Harlem

| go up there. | speak to a | awer,

D ane Lutwak, and | said to her, I'mone dollar over
the system Can you please help ne? And she turned
around and said, No, nothing can be done, and | had
to |l eave up there. Were do you get help? | don't
know where you get help. | wote thema latter, a
four-page letter explaining to themthat in 2010, '11

and '12, | submtted -- Excuse ne. | had a prostate
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operation. M/ doctor was off Blue Cross and Bl ue
Shield. It cost me $8,000 for the doctor.

Six nonths |ater | get a doctor for
$12,000 for nmy teeth. | mail all the doctor bills to
the SCRIE Programand | get a letter back fromthe,
Sir, we are not interested in your nedical expenses.
At the sane tinme, a friend of m ne passed away, and |
contributed $5,000 to the funeral, and they al so
said, Funeral bills also are not deductible. So now
that I'"mout of the system like this |ady said ny
apartnent went to fair market value from $562 now
it's up to $1,500 with the fuel pass-al ong.

That's going to be ny total incone. W
Social Security is only $647 a nonth. | don't know
how t hese people run this place over here. Nobody
shoul d be term nated, and excuse nme. | only have 14
seconds. Wiat | want to say is, Chin, sonebody has
to make an anendnent that all the seniors that were
bunked out from 2009 because the SCRI E programfroze
the system should be now reinstated with open arns,
and with | ove and say, No problens. You're back into
the system

[ Pause]
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MARTI N CORNFELD: My nane is Martin
Cornfeld. I'ma -- My nane is Martin Cornfeld. [|I'm
a homeowner in Geenwich Village for 50 years, a war
veteran, and an artist. | wll confirmwhat he said
about SCRIE. | was with him | went down there.
He's a nei ghbor of nmne and a friend, and he al so was
an electrician that did nore pro bono work in the
nei ghbor hood to people who couldn't afford it. A
genui ne good guy. W go down there.

You' re worried about them speaking
Spani sh.  You shoul d worry about conmon courtesy.
We're going to call security because a man is crying
because he's out of control. He's getting thrown out
of his apartnent. Sonething is wong, and the two
| adi es who were here who painted a beautiful picture
of what they're going to do, they don't even have the
wherewi thal to stay and hear what people have to say.
Ckay. |In 2005 --

CHAI RPERSON FERRERAS: We just -- |'m
sorry, we're going to add -- we'll add to your tine.
| just want you to know that there is staff here from
the agency that's listening and they're going to be

reporting back to the Comm ssion.
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MARTI N CORNFELD: (Ckay, in 2005, the
[imt was $25,000. It went up to 29 and then it
died. Nobody in the Gty of New York could say why
it wasn't increased. Social Security went up. The
income tax went up, Verizon went up, Time-Warner went
up. Everybody went up except that. The only reason
is that it benefitted the landlords. Now here is a
probl em that nobody is going to address unless | know
about anything. The | andlords who cone into a
building like a Morgans at 270 West 11th Street, half
are in co-op, the other half couldn't afford the co-
op so they're under rent control.

These people conme in. They buy the
apartnments. They pay the nmai ntenance. They col | ect
the rent control for people |ike you, and their
mssioninlife is one thing: just to get rid of
these people. He called ne up and he said, You've
got to cone over here. The lady is hysterical. W
go over there. The wonman is |like 80 years old. W
have an eviction notice. They go up to another |ady
wi th a nunber on her armwho was in a concentration
canp in Germany that's throwng us out. He gets a

brain wave, and says, Let ne go back. He checks his
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checki ng account. They didn't cash the last two
nmont h' s checks.

These people cone in. They collect their
noney, and then they don't cash the checks. Then
they go to Housing Court, and they get eviction
notices. They go back to the people. The people are
hysterical. GCkay, we'll give you another nonth, and
they throw themout. They're preying on the nost
vul nerabl e peopl e ever, and the systemis rewarding
the landlords. Now, Bloonberg is gone. This is no
| onger supposedly a bottomline city.

There is sonmething wong we have a SCRI E
where the people conme here, and paint a beautiful
pi cture and then wal k out and Bl oonberg goes to
CGol dman- Sachs and hires a John Rayer [sp?], who's
claimto fame is for NYCHA | spent $8 mllion to
fight old | adi es who want heat and hot water.
Sonething is wong with this picture. John Kennedy
said, Life is not fair, but governnent can and nust
make it fair. And you people have to nmake it fair,
because rent control -- | want to say one nore
t hi ng.

You peopl e are probably too young to

remenber. 1943 ny nother canme honme from work and
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said, Hooray, there is justice. They just froze al
the rents. Wiy did they freeze the rents in 1943?
We're at war with Germany and Japan. It is not a
done deal. Who is going to win the war? People were
streaming into cities to work at the munitions
factories and at the Navy yard. No place to live
because the rents are too high. So they froze the
rents because of the war. These are the peopl e that
we have to deal with, and these people are vultures
and they're sharks.

[ background di scussi on]

MARTI N CORNFELD: So what happened when

they couldn't collect -- they couldn't increase the
rent? Wien | lived in the Bronx, an apartnment opened
up. In those days it was $60 a nonth. You want the

apartment? $720 under the table. This is the
lowest. | can't generalize. The lowest formof life
living, ny nother should rest in peace said is a New
York City landlord. She said they're on the sane

| evel as people who sell heroin to eight-year-old
kids. They are vultures. This woman with the nunber
on her arm You know what happened to her? She
killed herself fromtaking too many pills.

CHAlI RPERSON FERRERAS: | want to --
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MARTI N CORNFELD: Hitler couldn't kil
her and a New York City landlord did.

CHAI RPERSON FERRERAS: Thank you.

MARTI N CORNFELD: And nobody wi || address
this.

CHAI RPERSON FERRERAS: Thank you for your
testinony. You may begin.

PATRI Cl A SKI LL: Thank you Council Menber

Chin for bringing this to the Gty Council. Mne is
very short. M name is Patricia Skill. | am 68
years old, and I live in a rent controlled apartnent.

Many peopl e believe that rent control neans a

fabul ous apartnment at alnost no rent. Unfortunately,
not true. | do live in a decent apartnent, but with
rent increases as nuch as 7-1/2% each year, ny rent
is higher than nmonthly incone. Each nonth, | use
savings to enable nme to stay in ny hone. This year
ny Social Security paynment increased $17 while ny
rent increased $186. Although ny taxable inconme has
been under the $29,000 incone limt for SCRIE for
years, once Social Security was counted, | was al ways
a few thousands dollars over the limt. Raising the
SCRIE limt $50,000 neans | will be able to remain in

ny home. Wiile | still will not be able to buy new
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clothes or eat in restaurants or go to the theater, |
m ght be able to spend a little bit on ny twin
grandchi |l dren who were born | ast years. For nme that
woul d be a benefit with SCRIE

CO CHAI RPERSON CHIN: Wl |,
congratul ati ons, G andna.

PATRI Cl A SKILL: Thank you.

CO CHAIRPERSON CHIN:  But this is only a
begi nning step, and | hear the testinony that you
raise. | really encourage you to reach out to your
counci | menber and then we can connect you.

MATTI N CORNFELD: May | interrupt you a
m nut e?

CO CHAI RPERSON CHI N:  Yes.

MARTI N CORNFELD: |If you happen to see
Cor ey Johnson --

CHAI RPERSON FERRERAS: Hand himthe mc.

MARTI N CORNFELD: If you happen to see
Corey Johnson, tell himif one of his constituents
calls himten tines, and the best they could get is
t he gat ekeeper who says, Have you tried Catholic
Charities? Tell himthat's not a sure way to get re-
el ect ed.

CO- CHAIRPERSON CHIN: | think we are --
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MARTI N CORNFELD: That's M. Johnson who
put in a five-m nute appearance and then left.

CO CHAI RPERSON CHIN: Now, we have --

MARTI N CORNFELD: And Morgan called hima
dozen tinmes, and the woman says, Have you tried
Catholic Charities.

CO CHAI RPERSON CHI N But give us your
nane, because we can connect you with the | egal
services that are here today that can really hel p you
advocate on your case. Right now the way this
| egi slation, we have to go back to the State. And
all the points that you raised her, if we could do
it, we have done it years ago. But, we need to get
to the State to do that. But we need your story so
that we can tell them and the governor how urgent it
is for themto anend the | aw that they passed, so
that we can fix it here. So | really thank you for
com ng out, but give us your information and your
testinony is really hel pful.

MARTI N CORNFELD: SCRIE is one of the
nost -- |'ve deal with a lot of Gty agencies being a
honmeowner in nmy life. SCRIE is probably the nost

insensitive |'ve ever seen in ny life.
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CO CHAI RPERSON CHI N:  Yeah, we're going
on it, yeah.

MARTI N CORNFELD: You better work on it
because you're dealing with scared old people that go
down there and get frustrated. Like plastic bag
they're throwmn away. Not nice.

CHAlI RPERSON FERRERAS: Thank you, and --

MARTI N CORNFELD: But you know what,
people went to war and put their lives on the line to
cone back to it. Not nice.

CHAI RPERSON FERRERAS: Yes, and we
acknow edge your testinony, and it inmportant. Like |
said, there are people here fromthe agency, and they
wi || be taking your sentinents back. Thank you

MORGAN BARTONI: Can | just say one
thing? 1In all of the conmmnications in 12 years from
the SCRIE office, if you notice the big letter
witing the Departnment of Finance or sonething, but
there is nothing underneath here, and all of the
letters that | received, and | have about 30 of them
that nentioned: Warning. Do not go over $29 by $1
or you'll be thrown out. How cone they never
notified any seniors, and | have papers just a few of

them here today. None of them nentioned any of that.
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| was never aware of it, and | was put out. That
doesn't make sense.

MORGAN BARTONI :  Thank you. Sorry to
bot her you.

CO- CHAI RPERSON CHIN: No, no, no, can we
have -- we'll have a staff get with you. Don't
| eave. We're going to get your contact information,

and we'll work on the case. The next panel Shortnman

JACK STRIKEMAN: Streitman [sp?].
CO CHAI RPERSON CHIN:  Streitman, Paul
Sawyer, Adelle Bender, and Peter GCee.

[ Pause]

CO- CHAI RPERSON CHI N You can start.

PAUL SAWER  Can | start?

CO CHAI RPERSON CHI N: Yes, just identify
-- your nane.

PAUL SAWER: [off m c] CGood afternoon.
My nanme is Paul Sawyer. | amhere to deliver
testinony on behalf of --

[ background di scussi on]

PAUL SAWER: Yes, oh, there we go. Good

afternoon. M nane is Paul Sawyer. |'mhere to
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deliver testinmony on behalf of Assenbly Menber Linda
B. Rosenthal. Good afternoon, |I'm Assenbly Menber
Linda B. Rosenthal, and | represent the 67th Assenbly
District, which includes the Upper Wst Side and
parts of Cinton, Hells Kitchen, and Manhattan. [|'m
here today to testify in regard to Intro 243-2014,
whi ch woul d rai se the annual household inconme [imt
for the Senior Ctizen Rent |Increase Exenption to
$50, 000, and inproving the operations of the SCRIE
program as adm ni stered by the New York City
Depart nent of Finance.

As a nmenber of the New York State
Assenbly Committee on Housing and an el ected official
who has assi sted hundreds of SCRIE applicants and
recipients, | have been fighting for years to raise
the SCRIE inconme limt, which stagnated at $29, 000
for five years. Now that we in the State Legislature
have voted to include seniors earning up to $50, 000
in SCRIE eligibility for the next two years, | am
pl eased to see the City Council taking up |egislation
to adopt the new inconme eligibility criteria here in
New York City.

This 72% i ncrease will provide thousands

of seniors with access to this critical benefit,
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which will help themremain in their honmes. Mny of
my constituents, especially rent controlled tenants,
are paying nearly 100% of their inconme toward their
rent, but have been ineligible for SCRI E because
their annual rent exceeds $29,000. Wth a $50, 000

i ncone maxi mum t hese tenants and nany ot hers coul d be
exenmpted fromtruly unaffordable rent increases. |
know that 1'lIl be working hard to ensure the State
Legi slature renews the $50,000 Iimt when it expires
and applies it to the Disability Rent Increase
Exenption in order to create parity between the two
prograns.

Increasing the incone limts, however, is
only part of the solution to the dw ndling nunber of
SCRIE recipients. Wiile the adm nistration of SCRIE
has markedly i nproved since the disastrous transition
fromthe New York City Departnent for the Aging to
t he Fi nance, the hundreds of constituents who contact
nmy office each year for help with any nunber of
problens with their SCRIE applications are a
testanent to the need for further refornms. | have
seen constituent's applications deni ed because
Fi nance staff did not follow the requirenents of the

aut hori zing state | aw.
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Because Finance staff applied agency
policies inconsistently, because of human error that
often takes nonths to undo. Additionally, although
Fi nance has issued a hel pful brochure on SCRIE and
DRI E, and unfortunately has yet to promulgate a
conpr ehensi ve set of rules and regul ati ons that
clearly explain specific policies regarding how
incone is calculated, howrent is frozen and ot her
critical areas. Wiile | informconstituents who
contact my office about nmany of these rules, and sure
that errors made by Finance staff are corrected,
there are undoubtedly hundreds of tenants who remain
in the dark about their rights for every tenant who
seeks hel p.

Change is needed in nany aspects of
Fi nance Administration and the SCRIE and DRI E
prograns from broad policies to streamining and
clarifying fornms and applications. | have,
therefore, included a |list of reconmendations that
address the nyriad of issues | and my constituents
have encountered in recent years. | urge Finance to
i npl enment these changes i medi ately to nake the
adm ni stration of SCRIE and DRIE truly fair and

accessible to all eligible tenants. Thank you.
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CO CHAI RPERSON CHI N:  Thank you. Yeah
we al so want you to bring back the assenbly nenber to
t hank you for her testinony. But really a lot of the
testinony that you' ve heard today, we need state | aw
to amend that, and also to put into the state law in
terns of deducting nedical expense to incone issues
like that. W heard peopl e tal king about
retroactive. People who got kicked out of the
program because their incone was a couple of dollars
hi gher. That we need to bring them back, and we need
state legislation to do that.

PAUL SAWER: And the last one is to an
MRC to pass state legislation. | will certainly take
all of that back to her

CO CHAI RPERSON CHI N:  Thank you

PAUL SAWER: Thank you

ADELLE BENDER  Good afternoon. M nane

is Adelle Bender, and I want to thank you for holding

these inportant hearings. |'mnot yet on SCRIE, but
| certainly do qualify for it. | procrastinate
sonetines. |t doesn't nmean that | don't need it. |

do, but society is judged by the way it treats its
elders. So | don't want society to fail on this

issue. It is really inportant, and | don't want to
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have to have many of ny friends who are seniors who

just may not qualify for SCRIE because they nake a

few dollars -- have an incone of a fewdollars to
much.

And sone of themsay, | go live in
Florida. | go live in another state because it's

cheaper to live there. W need the stability of the
nei ghbor hoods, and the seniors do give that
stability. Younger people who -- | |ove younger
people, | |ike older people, but sone of them can
nove around because of their jobs or whatever it may
be. But the seniors many of us are the stability of
t he nei ghbor hood of the community, and this is what
is so inportant.

And | want to be able to once in a while
to go out for a bagel and coffee, and not have to
worry can | manage to have this. Because if | can go
out for that bagel and coffee, and | just talk -- |
don't talk about nyself. | talk about other people,
this is a few bucks comng into the econony. So all
of these things are very inportant. |[It's the
econony. It's our quality of life, and |I'm hoping

that this city and this state will understand this
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because | think in the end everybody can benefit.

Thank you

[ Pause]

JACK STREI TMAN: Good afternoon. M nane
is Jack Streitman. |I'mliving in the East Village in

a rent controlled apartnment for 40 years, and |'ve
seen ny rent go up steadily froma very nodest start
to what is now just short of unaffordable. | didn't
worry about this problemwhile | was enployed, but I
retired in 2007, and subsist now on Social Security
and a small annuity. |'ve been subscribing to Cooper
Square Community Newsletter for over ten years now,
and | read in it about three years ago an article
about SCRIE.

| visited the committee office, and
wor kers graciously hel ped nme calculate if | was
eligible to sign up to receive SCRIE to | ower ny
rent. | was ecstatic to find out | was qualified to
sign up, and the Cooper Square Committee got ny
application out. For the next few years, | happily
had ny rent frozen in an anount | can afford about
$827 a nonth. This situation was short-lived because

in early 2014, | found ny Social Security incone for
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2013 to be $25,018 and ny annuity to be $5,232 for a
sum of $30, 250.

A short time later, SCRIE notified ne
that they were discontinuing ny nenbershi p because ny
i ncone was $1, 250 a year above the SCRIE naxi num
al | onabl e amobunt. M |andlord, therefore, raised ny
monthly rent by $200 a nonth to $1,030 a nonth. |
hope this bill goes through so that | can continue to
live in a neighborhood that | |ove. Seniors deserve

to live in New York just |ike anybody el se. Thank

you.

PETER CGEE: Good afternoon. M nane is
Peter Gee. | amthe Chief Program Oficer at Pratt
Area Conmunity Council. [|'mhere on behal f of

Stabilize New York City, and New York Cityw de
Coalition that have cone together to fight the

depl etion of affordable housing in New York Gty at
the hands of predatory equity. Thank you for the
opportunity testify this afternoon about our support
for this proposed legislation. Qur Anti-Predatory
Equity Coalition is nmade up of 12 conmunity-based
organi zati ons and one | egal service provider. CAY,
the Community Devel opnent Project at Urban Justice

Center, AAFE, CH CDC [sp?], Casa New Settl enent
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Apartnents, Fifth Avenue Comunity, Flatbush Tenant's
Coalition, Good Ad Lower East Side, Norval [sp?],

Mot hers on the Move, Northwest Bronx Comunity and
Clery [sp?] Coalition; PAC and Wodsi de on the Mbve.

I thank you for those who have al ready
expressed support for initiative especially Chair
Chi n who has been one of our chanpions. And we are
all saying in support of Colleague Donna Chu [sp?],
who will be speaking a little bit later from MFY
tal ki ng about access when it conmes to | anguage
access. Over the past seven years New York City's
af fordabl e housing narket is severely destabilized
because of predatory equity conpani es purchased | arge
nunbers of rent stabilized buildings at inflated
prices, and then push out rent stabilized so that
they can then increase the rents and eventual ly
charge market rates. Using a w de range of harassing
techniques fromfrivolous lawsuits to failing to
provi de heat or conduct necessarily repairs.

Low and noderate income senior citizens
are disproportionately affected by these tactics
because many of them cannot afford rising rents, or
sinply cannot stay in the buildings where there is no

heat in January. Those on fixed incones who nake
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just over $29,000 a year may end up paying half or
nore of their incone towards housing as rents
increase. Even in rent stabilized apartnents,

| andl ords can legally increase the rents up to 6% a
year on top of regular increases authorized by the
Rent Cui del i nes Board by naking or claimng to make
maj or capital inprovenents to the buildings and
passing costs along to the tenants.

I ncreasing SCRIE' s threshold from $29, 000
to $50,000 woul d provide and preserver affordable
housi ng for seniors who are al ready the backbone of
our conmunities. Having established roots and
invested in this city when many others did not. They
spent their lives here in building nei ghborhoods,
starting businesses, and raising famlies, and
deserve to stay. The Coalition of Stabilize NYC
stands behind this and wll continue to advocate for
senior citizens. Thank you

CO CHAI RPERSON CHIN:  Thank you very nuch
to all of you for comng out to testify, and we are
going to get this bill passed as quickly as possible.
But we are also going to work on all the amendnents

that we heard today. GCkay, so we're going to call up
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t he next panel. Valerie Rosenberg, Katie Gol dstein,
D ane Dutwack, and Lisa Newman.

[ Pause]

VALERI E ROSENBERG Ckay. So I'm Valerie
Rosenberg from United Nei ghborhood Housi ng. Thank
you very nuch for convening this hearing today. W
really appreciate the opportunity to speak. UNH is a
federation of 38 settlenent houses, but collectively
benefit over half a mllion New Yorkers frominfancy
to old age with a variety of services at 400 sites
t hroughout the city. W are here to express our
support for both the Intro and the Resol uti on under
di scussion at the hearing today, but also to provide
a coupl e of recommendations for how to inprove the
adm ni stration of the program

One is, and this one | haven't heard
today at all, which I'mreally interested by, to
change the post-nortem benefit transfer process. As
of right now, if a married person who is receiving
SCRIE and the benefit is in his or her nane passes
away, his or her spouse is required to notify the
Departnent of Finance within 30 days of that death
that the benefit needs to be transferred on to a

surviving spouse. As far as we've hard fromall of
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our organi zations that provide assistance with SCRIE
and ot her housing issues, it's a really unreasonable
expectation that any ol der person or any person who

is grieving the loss of their spouse shoul d remenber
to transfer the benefit within 30 days.

So our recommendation is that this just
gets conpletely sinplified to transferring that
benefit at the time of recertification. Secondly, if
a senior's increase -- incone rather increases
tenporarily disqualifying himor her fromthe
program we think that he or she should be allowed to
return to the programat the sane |evel of rent from
before the increase, the tenporary increase. And
Li nda Rosenthal and Bill Perkins have | egislation
right nowin commttee that would all for this
provi si on.

So we're just registering our support
that, and encouraging the Council to support as well.
Al so, establishing provision for seniors to re-enrol
in SCRIE, if they fail to recertify for a good reason
basically. There are other good cause regulations in
ot her public benefit prograns that could be a great
basis on which to create this sort of provision for

SCRIE, but if an older adult forgets because of
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dementia to recertify within the six nonths. And
then they have a relative who cones al ong and rem nds
them they should be able to re-enter the program at
the prior level, and also to have any sort of
difference credited fromthose nonths where the
benefit m ght have left.

And finally, this issue of nedica
expenses out of pocket. W think that they should be
renmoved fromthe incone eligibility because it's not
fungi ble incone. You can't use it for anything el se.
You have to use it for medical expenses. [bell] So
that's all | had. Thank you very much for hearing us
t oday.

KATI E GOLDSTEIN: H . Good afternoon.
Thank you Chair Chin and Chair Ferreras for hol ding
this inmportant haring. M nane is Katie Col dstein.
"' mthe Executive Director of Tenants for Neighbors,
the grassroots citywi de tenants rights organi zati on.
And I'mjust here to express our support for the
Intro and the Resolution. W hope that it passes
very swftly so seniors are able to access this
benefit as soon as possible. Qur nenbership are | ow

and noderate inconme tenants. Many of them aren't
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regul ated. Many of them feeling the pressures of
di spl acenent in their conmunities.

And so we are really happy that this is
able to pass through at the State level. And we're
| ooking forward to working with the State
Legislature, and you all to nmake sure that this is a
benefit that doesn't expire just after two years.

But it's a thing that's permanent for seniors. W

al so wanted to express our support for naking sure
that the incone expansion also reaches DRI E, and we
plan on working with the State Legislature to nmake
that in effect as well because we know that that's so
important for the disabled folks in New York City as
well. So thank you very nuch for holding this
hearing, and we | ook forward to working with you in
the future.

DI ANE LUTWAK:  Thank you Council Menber.
My nane is Diane Lutwak. M nane was actually
nmentioned a little bit earlier by one of the seniors
who testified. |'mhere fromthe Lenox Hil
Nei ghbor hood House, a 120-year-old settl enent house
on Manhattan's Upper East Side, which serves
approxi mately 20,000 community nenbers a year of whom

over half are seniors. | amthe Director of the
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Legal and Advocacy Departnent there now. Wen | net
this gentlenen | was at Volunteers of Legal Service,
whi ch runs nonthly clinics a senior centers around
the city providing informati on about SCRIE, answering
guesti ons.

And at the tine this gentleman nmet with
me, ny answer that unfortunately was the only answers
that | could give, which was that he had exceeded the
income limt, and there wasn't anything | could do
about that. So I, of course, fully support the
proposed bill to raise the incone limt, and having
wor ked with seniors throughout ny 26-year-career, in
| egal services, I"'mvery famliar wth nmany of the
i ssues that have been tal ked about, and have a nunber
of suggestions. I'Il just limt it to two.

Actual ly, Valerie nmentioned one of the,
which is the idea that we need to have a statutory
mechani sm  Because Deputy Comm ssioner Meyers
mentioned that the six-nonth grace is statutory and
there is nothing that they can do about it. Well,
many governnment prograns have exception to policy
provi sions for good cause whether it's SSI, food
stanps, Medicaid, Section 8 Al these prograns have

-- it's an escape valve, and we need that in the
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statute so that when soneone gets into the -- gets
knocked off the programfor the reasons that Valerie
descri bed whether it's health or other simlar
energenci es, and they mss that six-nonth deadline.

Because even though these three notices
are going out, there are always going to be people
that m ss the notices, that m ss the deadlines for
one reason or another. And we need to have a
statutory nmechanismin there that would allow t he
agency to have the discretion that they need to
exam ne the factors. And if good cause is shown, to
put the person back in the program So that's one
suggestion | have. The second has to do with the
definition of incone.

Simlarly, because we've had these
conversations, one-tine income that puts soneone over
the limt. But |I'mhoping we're going to see | ess of
these cases with the higher incone level. But it's
sill going to happen where soneone -- The only
exclusions fromthe definition of income in the
statute right now are for inheritances and gifts.

But there are other forns of one-tine incone that
sonmeone could have; withdrawals froman | RA

i nheritances.
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Not inheritances, but personal injury
[unp sum It could be just if soneone's incone is
$29, 000 or under the new limts $50,000. And then we
get an extra one-tine anmount that [bell] shouldn't --
t hey should be allowed to get back into the program
the following year with their rent frozen at the
| ower level. Not at the new nuch higher |level. So
t hank you again, and we're hoping to be able to work
with you, and to work with the State on these issues.

LI SA NEWMAN.  Hi, ny nane is Lisa Newmn.
|"man attorney with Legal Aid Society, and | wanted
to thank Chairs Chin and Ferreras for taking the | ead
on Intro 243. | wanted to urge the Council to pass
243, and the resolution so that theses changes that
the State made can go into effect on July 1st of this
year, and we urge the Council to do that. At Lega
Aid we see many, nmany househol ds who will benefit
fromthis increase in the incone limts including
those rent control tenants who are subject to 7.5%
rent increases each year. And rent stabilized
seniors in Manhattan who face increasingly |arge rent
-- nmonthly rent burdens.

And | think our bill is concerned for us.

And sonething that Legal Aid really hopes the
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Admi nistration when this law is passed is designing
an effective Qutreach plan. W are very aware of the
fact that there are many, many seniors who while
eligible for SCRIE are not actually currently on
SCRIE. And it's tragic that there are so many
seniors who are not accessing a benefit to which
they're entitled. And so wth this increase, there
are obviously going to be a | arge nunber of seniors
who becone eligible for SCRIE and so they're hoping
that the City really does a great public service
announcement to make sure that we get as many seniors
signed up as possible.

And to that end, Legal Aid is very
available to work with the Adm nistration to design
an effective Qutreach plan. And would be very
wel come -- welconme the idea to partner to nake sure
that gets done. For exanple making sure that any
time agencies that interact with seniors, see
seniors, including HRA when they're dealing with
Medi caid or HPD or DFTA just pushing SCRIE
applications on people so that they can get approved.
And also mrroring what Katie said earlier, we'd
obviously also urge the State to start working on

| egislation increasing DRIE anpbunts. Thank you.
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CO CHAI RPERSON CHIN:  Thank you very nuch
for all your testinmony, and for the great
suggestions. W |look forward to working with you on
that. Thank you.

LUCY NEWVMAN: Thank you

CO CHAI RPERSON CHIN:  Ch. Ckay, we're
going to call up the final panel. Edith Prentiss,
Damatri [sp?], and Martin --the last nane is --

MALE SPEAKER: [off m c]

CO CHAI RPERSON CHIN:  Damatri Martin from
the South Hall Community Service. Huh?

FEMALE SPEAKER: [off m c]

CO CHAIRPERSON CHIN:  Oh, Mriam oh say.
Mriam okay.

[ Pause]

CO CHAI RPERSON CHIN: Pl ease start.

EDI TH PRENTI SS: Well, all the senior
servi ce people may be in awe of today.

CO CHAI RPERSON CHIN:  Identify yourself.

EDI TH PRENTISS. |I'msorry. Edith
Prentiss, Disabled in Action of Metropolitan New
York. The disability conmunity was in awe yesterday
when we got the Taxi Bill passed. So, it's not so

terrible we're getting nothing today. Wen you speak
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about talking to the State to correct the problens
with the Bill, you could try throwing in the DRI E
word. The DRIE community has been trying to get DRIE
since -- as long as the DRI E program has exi sted
since the early '70s.

Come 2007, we finally got a totally
di sparate programw th the prom se that each year
we'll go for parity. Each year we'll get parity. It
is now 2014 -- 2014, we still don't have parity. In
fact, the disparity has now gone fromonly being a
$9, 000 disparity to a $30,000 disparity, and the
disability community is even nore inpacted. Seniors
who got their SCRIE at 62 have seen their rents
frozen. They got epic. They're protected fromthe
donut hol e.

The disability community nost of us
whoever were qualified, we never were eligible for
SCRIE and for DRIE for the sinple reason that we
actual ly worked, and we have Social Security. |
becane disabled in the late "90s. | have been
signing | eases since 1990 to 2014, and have seen ny
rent go up over 30% If | was even eligible for DRIE
in 2007, ny rent would at |east only be $900 today.

I nstead, ny rent exceeds ny Social Security. How do
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you live like that? You give back everything else in
your |life, and | budget to buy nmy way out of the
donut hol e.

Theater, novies, library, whatever, they
are not in our budgets. They are so truly not in our
budgets. Finance seens to think that the Gty of New
York has been supportive of DRIE. The City of New
York was the one nobst against DRIE as it was known.
Under the Bl oonberg Administration I wll always
remenber then Conmi ssioner Fal kl and [sp?] saying to
nme, They think we're going to live too long. Well,
what ? And then he said to ne, What kind of
disability don't they get? This is about two nonths
before he died. | never thought 1'd nake it to 62.
[bell] I will not nmake it to 65. Thank you

MARI AM HACHACHI AN:  Good afternoon. My
name i s Mariam Hachachi an[sp?], and |'mthe Program
Director of the South Health Community Services
Russian Anti-VictimProgram [sic] South Health
whol eheartedly endorses the New York City's Council's
work on Intro 243, which will approve the increase
for SCRIE i ncome nmanagability to $50,000. This would
have a profound inpact on the ability of so many of

our city's elders to continue |living i ndependently
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and to remain in their honmes. W would also like to
invite you to consider using that trenendous
opportunity to advocate for a roll back programfor
senior citizens. So many of our nei ghbors who are
the fortunate recipients of the benefits of this
wonder ful program neverthel ess are paying nore than
50% of their limted i ncomes towards their housing
costs. W urge you to advocate that the maxi mum rent
to be paid by a SCRIE reci pi ent be capped at 30% of

i ncone, which is universally considered to be the

af fordabl e housing level. Lastly, we respectfully
ask you to consider returning the adm nistration of
the SCRIE programto the New York City Departnent for
the Aging. Wen the program was under DFTA auspices,
clients and advocates with full staff who were

know edgeabl e about SCRIE, and who were able to speak
about the details of individual cases and issues were
resolved efficiently and personally. This is
markedly di fferent than the process which exists
today. dient's advocates nust call 311, and speak
to representatives who only the problem
superficially, and they are unable to neani ngfully

di scuss the details of any individual case. These

calls then get referred to soneone at the Depart nent
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of Finance. Neither the client nor the advocate is
given a nanme or a contact nunber for this person. An
unfortunate nunber of individuals have been wongly
termnated fromthe program And instead of being
able to call and speak to a programrepresentative,
and resolve these matters as we used to, our skilled
advocates are forced to go through the bureaucracy of
calling 311 repeatedly to request that soneone cal
us back. The results are inefficient and cause
effective elders a deal of stress. The elders of our
community are very fortunate to be living at a tine
when the New York City Council is advocating so
strongly on their behalf. W stand with themin
t hanki ng you, and encourage you to continue doing so.
And please, let us know if there is anything we can
help with this process. Thank you.

DONNA CHIN:  Good afternoon Counci
Menbers. My nane is Donna Chin. |'ma Senior Staff
Attorney at MY Legal Services. Thank you for this
opportunity for ne to testify about SCRIE and DRI E
i nprovi ng | anguage access. The inportance of
| anguage access for the success of the SCRI E/ DRI E
program was underscored when in Spring 2013, the

Departnent of Finance sent letters to nearly 6,000
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New York City senior citizens notifying themthat
their SCRIE benefits had been revoked, and that they
had a limted tine to reverse the revocation by

subm tting i ncome recertification docunents to DOF
Because this critical notice was sent only in
Engl i sh, and many did not have access to informal or
formal transl ation, thousands of LEP SCRIE recipients
could not fully understand its contact, and del ayed
or took no action. As a result, many of these LEP
seniors failed to quickly recertify their SCRIE
benefits. And based on this experience on August 8th
of 2013 a group of community organi zati ons consisting
of MFY, Asian Anericans for Equality, Project Home
and University Settlenent, Good A d Lower East Side,
and Council Menber Margaret Chin's office met with
the then DOF Conmi ssioner and his key staff at the
SCRIE office, and re-presented ei ght reconmendati ons
to them Since our neeting, DOF have taken steps to
i nprove | anguage access, but we believe they can do
nore. And very briefly our eight recormmendati ons are
for themto translate all essential docunents,

| etters or correspondences that affect a senior's
rights through the denial, |oss, or decrease in

benefit or services into Spanish, Chinese, and
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Russi an, the top three nbst requested | anguages at
DOF or any ot her appropriate | anguage. And for non-
essential docunents sent only in English to include
on the insert that they nentioned earlier. And we
al so asked for themto create the SCRIE Call Center
whi ch | know Council| Menbers today nentioned where
LEP custonmers can call to access the information
instead of going to the office. And also, of course,
to ensure that there is signage at the | obby of the
SCRIE/DRIE office. So that inform ng the custoners
that translation, and interpretation services are
avai l able. Ensure that there's directional signage
Wi th pictograns so that people can know actually
where at 66 John Street the SCRIE office is |ocated,
and to nmake sure that there are | Speak cards
available at the SCRIE office. Also to ensure that
at 66 John Street that the staff have access to a

t el ephone where they can provide custoners with

tel ephonic interpretation. And to ensure all the
SCRIE and DRIE staff are properly trained regarding
the DOF' s | anguage access policy and procedures, and
trained to be culturally sensitive to LEP custoners.
And there are a few nore, but |'mgoing to not

mention them They're in ny prepared testinony
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because of the time, and thank you very much for this
opportunity for ne to testify.

CO- CHAI RPERSON CHIN:  Thank you

CHAlI RPERSON FERRERAS: Thank you very
much for your testinony, and as we have | earned,
there is roomfor inprovenent both at DOF and sone
work at DFTA. |1'd like to thank ny col |l eague and Co-
Chair for this hearing. This is vey inportant to al
of us. W looking forward to hopefully having
anot her hearing to talk about all the great
i mprovenents as a followup to this hearing. Wat do
you think, Margaret?

CO CHAI RPERSON CHI N:  Yeah, but first
we've got to get this legislation passed, and then
we' ve also got to work on DRIE and al so t he honeowner
part. And also trying to get all these anendnents
fromall the suggestions that cane out at the
hearing. | really want to thank the advocates, and
the seniors thenselves for comng out. It is so
important to hear directly fromyou, and your stories
and your suggestions help. It nmakes these | aws
better. So thank you once again for com ng out.

CHAI RPERSON FERRERAS: And agai n we urge

you to nake sure that you contact your council menber
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with your specific stories, and be able to get us
information. Please pay attention. Both the Chair
and | are going to be working with the Adm nistration
on our side here in turning the Council so that we
can get this legislation passed and voted on as soon
as possible. Thank you, and we're going to call this

nmeeti ng to adjourn.
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